
 

NOTICE: Persons with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting should 
contact the City Clerk at (248) 524-3316 or via e-mail at clerk@troymi.gov at least two working days in 
advance of the meeting. An attempt will be made to make reasonable accommodations. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
 
 

Regular Meeting of the 
 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE CITY OF TROY 

 
FEBRUARY 1, 2010 

CONVENING AT 7:30 P.M. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  Submitted By 
      The City Manager 

mailto:clerk@troymi.gov�


 

 

 
 
 
TO:   The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
   Troy, Michigan 
 
FROM:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  Background Information and Reports 
 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
This booklet provides a summary of the many reports, communications and 
recommendations that accompany your Agenda.  Also included are 
suggested or requested resolutions and/or ordinances for your 
consideration and possible amendment and adoption. 
 
Supporting materials transmitted with this Agenda have been prepared by 
department directors and staff members.  I am indebted to them for their 
efforts to provide insight and professional advice for your consideration. 
 
As always, we are happy to provide such added information as your 
deliberations may require. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 

 
John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
 
 
 
  

 



 

 

 
MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC AND VISITORS 

(City Council Rules of Procedure – Rule 16) 
 
Any person not a member of the City Council may address the Council with 
recognition of the Chair, after clearly stating the nature of his/her inquiry or 
comment. City Council requests that if you do have a question or concern, to bring 
it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) whenever possible. If you feel 
that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you are encouraged to bring it 
to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved satisfactorily, to the 
Mayor and Council 
. 
• Petitioners shall be given a fifteen (15) minute presentation time that may be 

extended with the majority consent of City Council. 
• Any member of the public, not a petitioner of an item, shall be allowed to speak 

for up to five (5) minutes to address any Public Hearing item. 
• Any member of the public, not a petitioner of an item, shall be allowed to speak 

for up to five minutes to address Postponed, Regular Business or Consent 
Agenda items or any other item as permitted under the Open Meetings Act 
during the Public Comment portion of the agenda. 

• City Council may waive the requirements of this section by a majority of the City 
Council members. 

• City Council may wish to schedule a Special Meeting for Agenda items that are 
related to topics where there is significant public input anticipated. 

• Through a request of the Chair and a majority vote of City Council, public 
Comment may be limited when there are fifteen (15) or more people signed up 
to speak either on a Public Hearing item or for the Public Comment period of 
the agenda. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 

 

      

  

 
CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA 
February 1, 2010 – 7:30 PM 

Council Chambers  
City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 

Troy, Michigan 48084 
(248) 524-3317 

INVOCATION:  Pastor Hal Weemhoff – First United Methodist Church 1 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 1 

A. CALL TO ORDER: 1 

B. ROLL CALL: 1 

C. CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION: 1 

C-1 Presentations: 1 

(a) Proclamation in Recognition of National Aeronautics and Space 
Administration (NASA) Month in Troy – February 2010, Presented by Mayor 
Schilling to Troy School District ............................................................................ 1 

D. CARRYOVER ITEMS: 1 

D-1 No Carryover Items 1 

E. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 1 

E-1 No Public Hearings 1 

F. PUBLIC COMMENT: 2 

G. POSTPONED ITEMS: 2 

G-1 No Postponed Items 2 



 

 

H. REGULAR BUSINESS: 2 

H-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: 2 

(a) Mayoral Appointments: None Scheduled ............................................................. 2 
(b) City Council Appointments: Board of Zoning Appeals .......................................... 3 

H-2 Nominations for Appointments to Boards and Committees: 3 

(a) Mayoral Nominations: None Scheduled ............................................................... 3 
(b) City Council Nominations: Building Code Board of Appeals ................................. 3 

H-3 Request to Reschedule 2009 Liquor Violation Hearings 4 

I. CONSENT AGENDA: 4 

I-1a Approval of “I” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 4 

I-1b  Address of “I” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council 4 

I-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 5 

I-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations: 5 

(a) Recognition of National Aeronautics and Space Administration (NASA) – 
February, 2010 ..................................................................................................... 5 

I-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions:  None Submitted 5 

I-5 Mon Jin Lau Annual Fireworks Use Request 5 

I-6 Request from The Saint Andrew’s Society of Detroit for a New Club License to be 
Located at 2360 Rochester – MLCC Request #520848 5 

I-7 Request from Simbad, Inc. to Transfer Ownership of 2006 Class C Licensed 
Business to 336 John R and a New SDM License and New Dance-Entertainment 
Permit to be held in Conjunction – MLCC Request #528006 6 

I-8 Request from Ramchin, Inc. to Transfer Ownership of Escrowed 2009 Class C 
and SDM Licensed Business with Official Permit (Food) to 2940 Rochester – 
MLCC Request #533231 7 

I-9 2010 Poverty Exemption Guidelines 8 



 

 

I-10 Sandler v. City of Troy and MMRMA 8 

I-11 Troy v. Atto Construction Co. (Rochester Road Improvement Project) 8 

I-12 Request for Acceptance of a Warranty Deed for Right-of-Way – Michigan Catholic 
Credit Union – Sidwell #88-20-27-359-019 8 

I-13 Request for Acceptance of Two Permanent Sidewalk Easements – RPS Troy, 
LLC – Sidwell #88-20-22-356-032 and -033 9 

J. MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 9 

J-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:  None Submitted 9 

J-2 Memorandums (Items submitted to City Council that may require consideration at 
some future point in time): None Submitted 9 

K. COUNCIL REFERRALS: 9 

K-1   No Council Referrals Advanced 9 

L. COUNCIL COMMENTS 9 

L-1   No Council Comments Advanced 9 

M. REPORTS 9 

M-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees: 9 

(a) Board of Zoning Appeals/Final – December 15, 2009 .......................................... 9 
(b) Planning Commission/Draft – January 12, 2010 .................................................. 9 

M-2 Department Reports: 9 

(a) Purchasing Department – Final Reporting BidNet On-Line Auction Services – 
December, 2009 ................................................................................................... 9 

M-3  Letters of Appreciation: None Submitted 9 

M-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: None Submitted 9 



 

 

M-5  Communication from Acting Assistant City Manager/Economic Development 
Services Mark Miller Regarding Update of the Energy Efficiency and Conservation 
Block Grant (EECBG) 10 

N. STUDY ITEMS 10 

N-1  No Study Items Submitted 10 

O. CLOSED SESSION: 10 

O-1 No Closed Session Requested 10 

P. ADJOURNMENT 10 

SCHEDULED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 10 

Wednesday, February 10, 2010 (Liquor Violation Hearing) Regular City Council . 10 
Monday, February 15, 2010 Regular City Council ................................................. 10 
Wednesday, February 17, 2010 (Liquor Violation Hearing) Regular City Council . 10 
Monday, March 1, 2010 Regular City Council ....................................................... 10 
Monday, March 15, 2010 Regular City Council ..................................................... 10 
Monday, April 5, 2010 Regular City Council .......................................................... 10 
Monday, April 19, 2010 Regular City Council ........................................................ 10 
Monday, April 26, 2010 Special Study Session – Budget ...................................... 10 
Monday, May 3, 2010 Special Study Session – Budget ........................................ 10 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA February 1, 2010 
 

- 1 - 

INVOCATION:  Pastor Hal Weemhoff – First United Methodist Church 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

A. CALL TO ORDER: 

B. ROLL CALL: 
(a)  Mayor Louise E. Schilling 

Robin Beltramini 
Mayor Pro Tem Wade Fleming 
Martin Howrylak 
Mary Kerwin 
Maureen McGinnis 
Dane Slater 
 

(b) Absent Council Members: 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-02- 
Moved by  
Seconded by   
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby EXCUSES the absence of _______________  
at the Regular City Council Meeting of Monday, February 1, 2010 due to____________. 
 
Yes:    
No:    

C. CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:  

C-1 Presentations: 
(a) Proclamation in Recognition of National Aeronautics and Space Administration (NASA) 

Month in Troy – February 2010, Presented by Mayor Schilling to Troy School District 
  
D. CARRYOVER ITEMS: 
D-1 No Carryover Items 
 
E. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
E-1 No Public Hearings 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA February 1, 2010 
 

- 2 - 

 
F. PUBLIC COMMENT:                                                                                    

In accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City Council, Article 16 – 
Members of the Public and Visitors 
 
Any person not a member of the City Council may address the Council with recognition of 
the Chair, after clearly stating the nature of his/her inquiry or comment. City Council 
requests that if you do have a question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the 
appropriate department(s) whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been 
resolved satisfactorily, you are encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, 
and if still not resolved satisfactorily, to the Mayor and Council. 
• Petitioners shall be given a fifteen (15) minute presentation time that may be extended 

with the majority consent of City Council. 
• Any member of the public, not a petitioner of an item, shall be allowed to speak for up 

to five (5) minutes to address any Public Hearing item. 
• Any member of the public, not a petitioner of an item, shall be allowed to speak for up 

to five minutes to address Postponed, Regular Business or Consent Agenda items or 
any other item as permitted under the Open Meetings Act during the Public Comment 
portion of the agenda. 

• City Council may waive the requirements of this section by a majority of the City 
Council members. 

• City Council may wish to schedule a Special Meeting for Agenda items that are related 
to topics where there is significant public input anticipated. 

• Through a request of the Chair and a majority vote of City Council, public Comment 
may be limited when there are fifteen (15) or more people signed up to speak either on 
a Public Hearing item or for the Public Comment period of the agenda. 

G. POSTPONED ITEMS: 
G-1 No Postponed Items 

H. REGULAR BUSINESS: 

H-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees:  
 
The following Boards and Committees have expiring terms and/or vacancies. Bold black lines 
indicate the number of appointments required: 
 
The appointment of new members to all of the listed Board and Committee vacancies will 
require only one motion and vote by City Council. Council members submit nominations for 
appointment at the meeting prior to consideration. Whenever the number of submitted names 
exceeds the number of vacancies, a separate motion and roll call vote will be required to 
confirm the nominee receiving the greatest number of votes in the Council polling process 
(current process of appointing). Remaining vacancies will automatically be carried over to the 
next Regular City Council Meeting Agenda for consideration.  
 
(a) Mayoral Appointments: None Scheduled 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA February 1, 2010 
 

- 3 - 

(b) City Council Appointments: Board of Zoning Appeals 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-02- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPOINTS the following persons to serve on the 
Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 
Board of Zoning Appeals 
Appointed by Council  (7-Regular) 3-Year Term 
 
Donald L. Edmunds              Planning Commission Rep.* - Term Expires 01/31/2011  
 
Philip Sanzica         Planning Commission Alternate Rep.* - Term Expires 01/31/2011  
*Planning Commission’s recommendation. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 

H-2 Nominations for Appointments to Boards and Committees:  
 
The following Boards and Committees have expiring terms and/or vacancies. Bold black lines 
indicate the number of appointments required: 
 
The nomination of applicants to the following listed Board and Committee vacancies will be 
moved forward to the next Regular City Council Meeting for consideration of appointment. 
 
(a) Mayoral Nominations: None Scheduled 
 
(b) City Council Nominations: Building Code Board of Appeals 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-02- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby FORWARDS the following nominated persons to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated to the next Regular City Council Meeting for 
action: 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA February 1, 2010 
 

- 4 - 

 
Building Code Board of Appeals 
Appointed by Council (5-Regular) 5-Year Term for 3 Residents: with background, training or 
experience in construction or similar trades; at least one shall be a professional structural or 
civil engineer of architectural engineering experience.*   
2 by Ordinance: City Manager and Oakland County Health Department Representative 
 

*Resident - Term Expires 01/01/2015  
 

*Resident - Term Expires 01/01/2015  
 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
H-3 Request to Reschedule 2009 Liquor Violation Hearings 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-02- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby RESCHEDULES 2009 Liquor Violation Hearings 
from Wednesday, February 10th and Wednesday, February 17th to Monday, March 1st and 
Monday, March 15th 2010 Regular City Council Meetings. 
 
Yes: 
No: 

I. CONSENT AGENDA: 
  
I-1a Approval of “I” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-02- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That all items as presented on the Consent Agenda are hereby APPROVED as 
presented with the exception of Item(s) _____________, which SHALL BE CONSIDERED 
after Consent Agenda (I) items, as printed. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
I-1b  Address of “I” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council  
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA February 1, 2010 
 

- 5 - 

I-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-02-  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Minutes of the 7:30 PM Regular 
City Council Meeting of January 25, 2010 as submitted. 
 
I-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations:  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-02- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the following City of Troy 
Proclamation: 
 
(a) Recognition of National Aeronautics and Space Administration (NASA) – February, 2010  
 
I-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions:  None Submitted 
 
I-5 Mon Jin Lau Annual Fireworks Use Request  
  
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-02- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ISSUES a fireworks permit to Mon Jin Lau, located 
at 1515 East Maple Road for the use of fireworks at its annual Chinese New Year celebration on 
February 23rd and February 24th, 2010; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the Fire Prevention 
Division to inspect the fireworks to be used along with the site to assure compliance with 
applicable codes and standards for such a fireworks display. 
 
I-6 Request from The Saint Andrew’s Society of Detroit for a New Club License to be 

Located at 2360 Rochester – MLCC Request #520848 
  
(a) New License 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-02- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby CONSIDERS for APPROVAL the request from The 
Saint Andrew’s Society of Detroit for a New Club License to be located at 2360 Rochester, 
Troy, MI 48084, Oakland County {MLCC Request #520848} above all others” CONTINGENT 
upon passing the Troy Building and Fire Department Final Inspections; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That it is the consensus of this legislative body that the 
application BE RECOMMENDED “above all others” for issuance. 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA February 1, 2010 
 

- 6 - 

 
 (b) Agreement 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-02- 
 
WHEREAS, The Troy City Council deems it necessary to enter agreements with applicants for 
liquor licenses for the purpose of providing civil remedies to the City of Troy in the event 
licensees fail to adhere to Troy Codes and Ordinances; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES an agreement 
with The Saint Andrew’s Society of Detroit for a New Club License to be located at 2360 
Rochester, Troy, MI 48084, Oakland County {MLCC Request #520848} CONTINGENT upon 
passing the Troy Building and Fire Department Final Inspections and hereby AUTHORIZES the 
Mayor and City Clerk to execute the document, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the 
original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
I-7 Request from Simbad, Inc. to Transfer Ownership of 2006 Class C Licensed 

Business to 336 John R and a New SDM License and New Dance-Entertainment 
Permit to be held in Conjunction – MLCC Request #528006 

 
(a) Transfer License and New SDM License/Dance-Entertainment Permit 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-02- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby CONSIDERS for APPROVAL the request from 
Simbad, Inc. to transfer ownership of 2006 Class C Licensed Business, located in Escrow at 
29855 Northwestern, Southfield, MI 48034, Oakland County, from F&S Food Service, Inc.; 
David H. Fink, Receiver; transfer location (Governmental Unit) (MLC 436.1531(1) to 336 John 
R, Troy, MI 48083, Oakland County; and requests a new SDM License and new Dance-
Entertainment Permit to be held in conjunction {MLCC Request #528006} “above all others” 
CONTINGENT upon passing the Troy Building and Fire Department Final Inspections; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That it is the consensus of this legislative body that the 
application BE RECOMMENDED “above all others” for issuance. 
 
(b) Agreement 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-02- 
 
WHEREAS, The Troy City Council deems it necessary to enter agreements with applicants for 
liquor licenses for the purpose of providing civil remedies to the City of Troy in the event 
licensees fail to adhere to Troy Codes and Ordinances; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES an agreement 
with Simbad, Inc. to transfer ownership of 2006 Class C Licensed Business, located in Escrow 
at 29855 Northwestern, Southfield, MI 48034, Oakland County, from F&S Food Service, Inc.; 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA February 1, 2010 
 

- 7 - 

David H. Fink, Receiver; transfer location (Governmental Unit) (MLC 436.1531(1) to 336 John 
R, Troy, MI 48083, Oakland County; and requests a new SDM License and new Dance-
Entertainment Permit to be held in conjunction {MLCC Request #528006} CONTINGENT upon 
passing the Troy Building and Fire Department Final Inspections and hereby AUTHORIZES the 
Mayor and City Clerk to execute the document, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the 
original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
I-8 Request from Ramchin, Inc. to Transfer Ownership of Escrowed 2009 Class C and 

SDM Licensed Business with Official Permit (Food) to 2940 Rochester – MLCC 
Request #533231 

 
 (a) Transfer License 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-02- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby CONSIDERS for APPROVAL the request from 
Ramchin, Inc. to transfer ownership of escrowed 2009 Class C and SDM Licensed Business 
with Official Permit (Food), located at 6123 Highland, Waterford, MI 48327, Waterford 
Township, Oakland County, from McQuistion’s Airport Inn, Inc; Transfer Location 
Governmental Unit issued under MCL 436.1531(1) to 2940 Rochester, Troy, MI 48083, 
Oakland County {MLCC Request #533231} above all others” CONTINGENT upon passing the 
Troy Building and Fire Department Final Inspections; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That it is the consensus of this legislative body that the 
application BE RECOMMENDED “above all others” for issuance. 
   
(b) Agreement 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-02- 
 
WHEREAS, The Troy City Council deems it necessary to enter agreements with applicants for 
liquor licenses for the purpose of providing civil remedies to the City of Troy in the event 
licensees fail to adhere to Troy Codes and Ordinances; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES an agreement 
with Ramchin Inc. to transfer ownership of escrowed 2009 Class C and SDM Licensed 
Business with Official Permit (Food), located at 6123 Highland, Waterford, MI 48327, Waterford 
Township, Oakland County, from McQuistion’s Airport Inn, Inc; Transfer Location 
Governmental Unit issued under MCL 436.1531(1) to 2940 Rochester, Troy, MI 48083, 
Oakland County {MLCC Request #533231}, CONTINGENT upon passing the Troy Building and 
Fire Department Final Inspections and hereby AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk to 
execute the document, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this 
meeting. 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA February 1, 2010 
 

- 8 - 

 
I-9 2010 Poverty Exemption Guidelines  
  
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-02- 
 
RESOLVED, That, pursuant to MCL 211.7u, Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the 
proposed City of Troy Poverty Exemption Guidelines for 2010, as presented by the City 
Assessor in a memorandum dated January 26, 2010, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to 
the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
I-10 Sandler v. City of Troy and MMRMA  
  
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-02- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES and DIRECTS the City Attorney to 
represent the City of Troy in any and all claims and damages in the matter of Alex Sandler v. 
City of Troy and Michigan Municipal Risk Management Authority; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the City Attorney 
to pay necessary costs and expenses and to retain any necessary expert witnesses to 
adequately represent the City in this matter.  
 
I-11 Troy v. Atto Construction Co. (Rochester Road Improvement Project)  
  
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-02- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the proposed consent judgment in the 
City of Troy v Atto Construction Company, et al, condemnation case, and hereby 
AUTHORIZES payment in the amounts stated therein; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the City Attorney’s 
Office to execute the consent judgment, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original 
Minutes of this meeting. 
 
I-12 Request for Acceptance of a Warranty Deed for Right-of-Way – Michigan Catholic 

Credit Union – Sidwell #88-20-27-359-019 
  
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-02- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ACCEPTS the Warranty Deed for right-of-way, for 
the consideration amount of One Dollar ($1.00), from the Michigan Catholic Credit Union, 
owner of the property having Sidwell #88-20-27-359-019; and 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA February 1, 2010 
 

- 9 - 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the City Clerk to record 
the Warranty Deed with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
I-13 Request for Acceptance of Two Permanent Sidewalk Easements – RPS Troy, LLC 

– Sidwell #88-20-22-356-032 and -033 
  
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-02- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ACCEPTS the two Permanent Easements for 
sidewalk, each for a consideration amount of One Dollar ($1.00), from RPS Troy, LLC, owner 
of the properties having Sidwell #88-20-22-356-032 and -033; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the City Clerk to record 
the Permanent Easements with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall 
be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 

J. MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 
J-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:  None Submitted 
 
J-2 Memorandums (Items submitted to City Council that may require consideration at 

some future point in time): None Submitted 
 
K. COUNCIL REFERRALS:  

Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City Council Members for 
Placement on the Agenda 

K-1   No Council Referrals Advanced 

L. COUNCIL COMMENTS 
L-1   No Council Comments Advanced 

M. REPORTS  
M-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees: 
(a) Board of Zoning Appeals/Final – December 15, 2009  
(b) Planning Commission/Draft – January 12, 2010 

M-2 Department Reports: 
(a) Purchasing Department – Final Reporting BidNet On-Line Auction Services – December, 

2009  
    
M-3  Letters of Appreciation: None Submitted 
 
M-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: None Submitted 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA February 1, 2010 
 

- 10 - 

M-5  Communication from Acting Assistant City Manager/Economic Development 
Services Mark Miller Regarding Update of the Energy Efficiency and Conservation 
Block Grant (EECBG) 

N. STUDY ITEMS 
N-1  No Study Items Submitted 

O. CLOSED SESSION: 
O-1 No Closed Session Requested 

P. ADJOURNMENT 

Respectfully submitted, 

 
John Szerlag, City Manager 
 

SCHEDULED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 
Wednesday, February 10, 2010 (Liquor Violation Hearing) ...... Regular City Council 
Monday, February 15, 2010 ...................................................... Regular City Council 
Wednesday, February 17, 2010 (Liquor Violation Hearing) ...... Regular City Council 
Monday, March 1, 2010 ............................................................. Regular City Council 
Monday, March 15, 2010 ........................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, April 5, 2010 ............................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, April 19, 2010 ............................................................. Regular City Council 
Monday, April 26, 2010 ........................................... Special Study Session – Budget 
Monday, May 3, 2010 .............................................. Special Study Session – Budget 

 



 

PROCLAMATION IN RECOGNITION OF 
NASA MONTH IN TROY 

FEBRUARY 2010 
 
WHEREAS, The Troy Community is privileged to be part of an out-of-this-world educational 
opportunity with astronauts aboard the Orbiting Space Station Expedition; and 
 
WHEREAS, The International Space Station (ISS) is an orbiting research facility supported by 
19 nations that conducts experiments in the area of biology, human biology, physics, astronomy 
and meteorology; and 
 
WHEREAS, Troy is the only Michigan community - and one of only six in the nation - to be 
selected for this honor by the National Aeronautics and Space Administration (NASA); and 
 
WHEREAS, The Troy School District will host a downlink that will allow the Space Station crew 
to speak live to our Troy students; and 
 
WHEREAS, This unique opportunity will give students important insight into the importance of 
NASA; and  
 
WHEREAS, This once in a lifetime opportunity creates a unique learning experience for our 
students to engage in activities that will create excitement for science and space travel; and 
 
WHEREAS, The downlink is scheduled for 10 a.m. on February 1 at Athens High School;  
 
NOW THEREFORE LET IT BE RESOLVED, That the City of Troy celebrates this important 
event by officially declaring February, 2010 to be "NASA Month" in the City of Troy; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council congratulates the Troy School District 
for being chosen with the prestigious honor of hosting the downlink with members of the Orbiting 
Space Station, Expedition 22.  
 
Presented this 1st day of February 2010. 
 
 
 

campbellld
Text Box
C-01a



 

 
 
                 
 
DATE:    January 25, 2010 
 
TO:     John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM:   Tonni L. Bartholomew, City Clerk 
 
SUBJECT:   2009 Liquor Violation Hearings 
 
The Police Department has submitted nine (9) liquor license violations (listed below). The liquor 
license violation hearings are currently scheduled for Wednesday, February 10th and February 17th. 
Based on past experience, we anticipate that most of the violations are not likely to be contested and 
it is recommended by City Administration that these hearings be rescheduled for regular City Council 
meetings. Since five of the citations were issued on the same day, these hearings are proposed for:   
 
Monday, March 1, 2010: 
 
1) Charles Edward Post 14, The American Legion - 1340 West Maple, 48084 
 License No.: Club (20523-2009 SS)  
 
2) Joseph Koolisky’s, LLC (dba: Joe Kool’s) - 1835 East Big Beaver, 48083 
 License No.: Class C (71344-2009 SS)  
 
3) San Marino Club, Inc. - (dba: San Marino Catering Hall / Tremonti Restaurant) 
  1685 East Big Beaver, 48083 
 License No.: Class C (4874-2009 SS) 
 
4) Mar-Bill, Inc. (dba: Parrot Cove Yacht Club) - 33475 Dequindre, 48084 
 License No.: Class C (2592-2009 SS) SDM (10346-2009) 
 
5) Marriott International, Inc. / WHP Hotel, LLC - (dba: Troy Marriott) 
 200 West Big Beaver, 48084 
 License No.: Hotel B (138655-2009 SS) SDM (138656-2009) 
 
All other hearings could be rescheduled for:  
 
Monday, March 15, 2010: 
 
1) McCormick & Schmick Restaurant Corp. (dba: McCormick & Schmick Seafood Restaurant) 
  2850 Coolidge Hwy, 48084 
 License No.: Class C (107172-2009 SS) 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
H-03



 
2) Kruse & Muer Troy, LLC (dba: Kruse & Muer on Wilshire) - 911 Wilshire, 48084 
 License No.: Class C (144326-2009 SS) SDM (144327-2009) 
 
3) MEI Holdings, LLC / Troy Hotel Property. LLC - (dba: Hilton Homewood Suites) 
  1495 Equity W, 48084 
 License No.: B-Hotel (116290-2009 SS) SDM (116291-2009) 
 
4) Yara, Inc. (dba: Lebanese Grill) -1600 Rochester Road, 48083 
 License No.: Class C (77842-2009 SS) 
 
The rescheduling of these meetings will still allow City Council to object to the automatic renewal of 
the liquor license, if Council so chooses. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Reviewed as to form and legality: 
 
 
Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft January 25, 2010 
 

- 1 - 

Pastor Bob Cholette of Troy Assembly of God gave the Invocation. The Pledge of Allegiance to 
the Flag was given.  

A. CALL TO ORDER: 
A Regular Meeting of the Troy City Council was held Monday, January 25, 2010, at City Hall, 
500 W. Big Beaver Road. Mayor Schilling called the Meeting to order at 7: 30 PM. 
 

B. ROLL CALL: 
Mayor Louise E. Schilling 

 Robin Beltramini (Absent) 
 Mayor Pro Tem Wade Fleming 
 Martin Howrylak 
 Mary Kerwin 
 Maureen McGinnis 
 Dane Slater 

 
Vote on Resolution to Excuse the Absence of Council Member Robin Beltramini  
 
Resolution #2010-01-017 
Moved by Fleming  
Seconded by  Schilling  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby EXCUSES the absence of Council Member Robin 
Beltramini at the Regular City Council Meeting of Monday, January 25, 2010 and the Closed 
Session of Monday, January 25, 2010 due to being out of the county. 
 
Yes: Schilling, Fleming, Howrylak, Kerwin, McGinnis, Slater  
No:  None 
Absent:  Beltramini  
 
MOTION CARRIED 

C. CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:  

C-1 Presentations: 
a) On behalf of the City of Troy Employees’ Casual for a Cause Program for the months of 

November and December, Community Affairs Director Cindy Stewart presented a check 
in the amount of $1,130.05 to Honor Flight Michigan Inc. 

  
D. CARRYOVER ITEMS: 
D-1 No Carryover Items 

E. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
E-1 No Public Hearings 
 

campbellld
Text Box
I-02



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft January 25, 2010 
 

- 2 - 

Vote on Resolution to Suspend Rules of Procedure for the City Council; Rule 22. 
Suspend Rules 
 
Resolution #2010-01-018 
Moved by Schilling   
Seconded by  Kerwin  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby SUSPENDS Rules of Procedure for the City 
Council in accordance with Rule 22. Suspend Rules. 
 
Yes: Schilling, Fleming, Kerwin, McGinnis, Slater  
No:  Howrylak  
Absent:  Beltramini  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Vote on Resolution to Reduce Public Comment- Rules of Procedure for the City Council; 
Rule 16 – Members of the Public & Visitors 
 
Resolution #2010-01-019 
Moved by Schilling  
Seconded by McGinnis  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby REDUCES Public Comment from five (5) minutes 
as established by Rules of Procedure for the City Council; Rule 16 – Members of the Public & 
Visitors to three (3) minutes  
 
Yes:  Kerwin, McGinnis, Slater, Schilling, Fleming  
No:  Howrylak  
Absent: Beltramini  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
F. PUBLIC COMMENT:      

 
Gordon Schepke Opposes millage increase 
Charles Solis Supports millage increase 
Richard Peters Questions budget increases 
Janice Daniels Opposes millage increase 
Audre Zembrzuski Opposes millage increase 
Linda Thielfoldt Opposes millage increase 
Brian Joseph Opposes millage increase 
Jack Witt Opposes millage increase 
Kathleen Martin Supports millage increase 
John Lavendar Supports millage increase 

Paul Beck Opposes employee wage increases; wants larger room for Board 
of Review meetings; opposes millage increase 

Christina Peck Discussed an incident at 52-4 District Court 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft January 25, 2010 
 

- 3 - 

Mark Havas Discussed an incident at 52-4 District Court and issues with the 
Troy Police Department 

Marvin Reinhardt Will vote No on millage increase but wants the millage to pass; 
various topics 

Harry Philo Supports millage increase 

Nancy Bliss Wants citizens’ committee formed to decide what to do with 
stimulus money; various topics 

Michele Hodges Supports millage increase 
Ward Randol Supports millage increase 
Stephanie Jasky Opposes millage increase 
Deborah DeBacker Opposes millage increase 
Linda Kajma Supports millage increase 

Fred Eckhout Suggests City Administration provide the public with information 
regarding City expenditures and concessions 

James Savage Opposes millage increase 
Mary Ann Bernardi Suggests transferring capital funds to general fund 
Thomas Burke Opposes millage increase 
Ann Comiskey Supports millage increase 
Cathy Fucinari Supports millage increase 
Ed Spillers Supports millage increase 
Tom Krent Supports millage increase 
Donald Roeske Supports millage increase 
Charlene Femminineo Opposes millage increase 
Bill Cowger Supports millage increase 

 
The Meeting RECESSED at 9:07 PM. 
 
The Meeting RECONVENED at 9:17 PM. 
 
John Witt Opposes millage increase 
Don Barnes Supports millage increase 

 
Mayor Schilling requested clarification from the City Manager and City Administration regarding 
statements made during Public Comment. 
         
G. POSTPONED ITEMS: 
G-1 No Postponed Items 

H. REGULAR BUSINESS: 

H-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees:  
 
a) Mayoral Appointments: None Scheduled 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft January 25, 2010 
 

- 4 - 

b) City Council Appointments: Building Code Board of Appeals 
 
Resolution #2010-01-020 
Moved by Fleming  
Seconded by Kerwin  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPOINTS the following person to serve on the 
Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 
Building Code Board of Appeals 
Appointed by Council (5-Regular) 5-Year Term: 3 residents with background, training or 
experience in construction or similar trades; at least one shall be a professional structural or 
civil engineer of architectural engineering experience.*  
2 by Ordinance: City Manager and Oakland County Health Department Representative 
 
Theodore Dziurman *Civil Engineer/Resident - Term Expires 01/01/2015  
 
 
Yes:  Kerwin, McGinnis, Slater, Schilling, Fleming, Howrylak  
No:  None 
Absent: Beltramini  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

H-2 Nominations for Appointments to Boards and Committees:  
 
a) Mayoral Nominations: None Scheduled 
 
b) City Council Nominations: Board of Zoning Appeals  
 
Resolution #2010-01-021 
Moved by Fleming  
Seconded by Kerwin  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby FORWARDS the following nominated persons to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated to the next Regular City Council Meeting for 
action: 
 
Board of Zoning Appeals 
Appointed by Council (7-Regular) 3-Year Term 
 
Donald L. Edmunds    Planning Commission Rep.* - Term Expires 01/31/2011  
 
Philip Sanzica   Planning Commission Alternate Rep.* - Term Expires 01/31/2011  
*Planning Commission’s recommendation. 
 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft January 25, 2010 
 

- 5 - 

Yes McGinnis, Slater, Schilling, Fleming, Howrylak, Kerwin  
No:  None 
Absent: Beltramini  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
H-3 General Obligation Unlimited Tax Refunding Bonds 
 
Resolution #2010-01-022 
Moved by McGinnis  
Seconded by Kerwin  
 
WHEREAS, Pursuant to the provisions of Act 279, Public Acts of Michigan, 1909, as amended 
(“Act 279”) and the City Charter of the City of Troy (the “City”), and as a result of the affirmative 
vote of the City’s electors at the general election in the City on April 5, 1999, the City issued its 
General Obligation Unlimited Tax Bonds, Series 2001 (Streets, Roads and Streetscape 
Improvements) (the “2001 Street Improvement Bonds”) in the aggregate principal amount of 
$6,850,000 for the purpose of defraying the cost of the acquisition, construction and 
reconstruction of various street, roadway and streetscape improvements in the City and related 
site furnishings and improvements and all costs related thereto; and 
 
WHEREAS, The 2001 Street Improvement Bonds remain outstanding in the aggregate 
principal amount of $5,000,000, mature in various principal amounts on October 1 in the years 
2010 through 2020 and bear interest at rates per annum which vary from 4.000% to 4.700%; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, Pursuant to the provisions of Act 279 and the City Charter of the City, and as a 
result of the affirmative vote of the City’s electors at the general election in the City on April 5, 
1999, the City issued its General Obligation Unlimited Tax Bonds, Series 2001 (Public Safety 
Facilities) (the “2001 Public Safety Bonds”) in the aggregate principal amount of $1,170,000 for 
the purpose of defraying the cost of the acquisition, construction and equipping of new public 
safety facilities for police and fire department services and the sites therefore and all costs 
related thereto; and 
 
WHEREAS, The 2001 Public Safety Bonds remain outstanding in the aggregate principal 
amount of $920,000, mature in various principal amounts on October 1 in the years 2010 
through 2020 and bear interest at rates per annum which vary from 4.125% to 4.750%; and 
 
WHEREAS, Pursuant to the provisions of Act 279 and the City Charter of the City, and as a 
result of the affirmative vote of the City’s electors at the general election in the City on April 5, 
1999, the City issued its General Obligation Unlimited Tax Bonds, Series 2001 (Community 
Center and Recreational Facilities) (the “2001 Community Center Bonds” and with the 2001 
Street Improvement Bonds and the 2001 Public Safety Bonds, collectively, the “2001 Bonds”) 
in the aggregate principal amount of $9,470,000 for the purpose of defraying the cost of the 
renovation and improvement of the City’s Community Center Building, the site therefore and 
any furnishings and facilities related thereto and the acquisition and improvement of additional 
park lands and open space for recreational facilities and all costs related thereto; and 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft January 25, 2010 
 

- 6 - 

WHEREAS, The 2001 Community Center Bonds remain outstanding in the aggregate principal 
amount of $6,620,000, mature in various principal amounts on October 1 in the years 2010 
through 2020 and bear interest at rates per annum which vary from 4.000% to 4.625%; and 
 
WHEREAS, Part VI of Act 34, Public Acts of Michigan, 2001, as amended (“Act 34”) authorizes 
the City to refund all or any part of its outstanding securities; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City has received a proposal from Fifth Third Securities, Inc. (the 
“Underwriter”) to refund all or part of the outstanding 2001 Bonds; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City Manager has recommended that this resolution be adopted in order to 
effect the refunding of all or part of the outstanding 2001 Bonds and this Council has 
determined that it is in the best interest of the City that such refunding be undertaken. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED: 
 
1. AUTHORIZATION OF BONDS -- PURPOSE.  
 
Bonds of the City, aggregating the principal sum of not to exceed Twelve Million Eight Hundred 
Fifty Thousand Dollars ($12,850,000) (the “Refunding Bonds”), shall be issued and sold 
pursuant to the provisions of Act 34, and other applicable statutory provisions, for the purpose 
of refunding all or part of the 2001 Bonds (the “2001 Bonds To Be Refunded”). The City 
Manager shall determine which of the 2001 Bonds shall be refunded and the principal amount 
of the Refunding Bonds at the time of sale. 
 
2. BOND DETAILS.  
 
The Refunding Bonds shall be designated “General Obligation Unlimited Tax Refunding Bonds, 
Series 2010;” shall be dated as of such date as shall be approved by the City Manager at the 
time of sale; shall be numbered from 1 upwards; shall be fully registered; shall be in the 
denomination of $5,000 each or any integral multiple thereof not exceeding the aggregate 
principal amount for each maturity at the option of the purchaser thereof; shall bear interest at a 
rate or rates not exceeding 6% per annum to be determined by the City Manager at the time of 
sale payable on such dates as shall be determined by the City Manager at the time of sale; and 
shall mature in such principal amounts and on such dates and in such years as shall be 
determined by the City Manager at the time of sale. 
 
3. PAYMENT OF PRINCIPAL AND INTEREST.  
 
The principal of and interest on the Refunding Bonds shall be payable in lawful money of the 
United States. Principal shall be payable upon presentation and surrender of the Refunding 
Bonds to the bond registrar and paying agent as they severally mature. Interest shall be paid to 
the registered owner of each Refunding Bond as shown on the registration books at the close 
of business on the fifteenth day of the calendar month preceding the month in which the 
interest payment is due. Interest shall be paid when due by check or draft drawn upon and 
mailed by the bond registrar and paying agent to the registered owner at the registered 
address. 
 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft January 25, 2010 
 

- 7 - 

4. PRIOR REDEMPTION.  
 
The Refunding Bonds shall be subject to redemption prior to maturity if so determined by the 
City Manager at the time of sale and if so determined, upon such terms and conditions as shall 
be approved by the City Manager. 
 
5. BOOK-ENTRY SYSTEM.  
 
Initially, one fully-registered bond for each maturity of the Refunding Bonds, in the aggregate 
amount of such maturity, shall be issued in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of The 
Depository Trust Company (“DTC”) for the benefit of other parties (the “Participants”) in the 
book-entry-only transfer system of DTC. In the event the City determines that it is in the best 
interest of the City not to continue the book-entry system of transfer or that the interests of the 
holders of the Refunding Bonds might be adversely affected if the book-entry system of 
transfer is continued, the City may notify DTC and the bond registrar and paying agent, 
whereupon DTC will notify the Participants of the availability through DTC of bond certificates. 
In such event, the bond registrar and paying agent shall deliver, transfer and exchange bond 
certificates as requested by DTC and any Participant or “beneficial owner” in appropriate 
amounts in accordance with this resolution. DTC may determine to discontinue providing its 
services with respect to the Refunding Bonds at any time by giving notice to the City and the 
bond registrar and paying agent and discharging its responsibilities with respect thereto under 
applicable law or the City may determine that DTC is incapable of discharging its duties and 
may so advise DTC. In either such event, the City shall use reasonable efforts to locate another 
securities depository. Under such circumstances (if there is no successor securities 
depository), the City and the bond registrar and paying agent shall be obligated to deliver bond 
certificates in accordance with the procedures established by this resolution. In the event bond 
certificates are issued, the provisions of this resolution shall apply to, among other things, the 
transfer and exchange of such certificates and the method of payment of principal of and 
interest on such certificates. Whenever DTC requests the City and the bond registrar and 
paying agent to do so, the City and the bond registrar and paying agent shall cooperate with 
DTC in taking appropriate action after reasonable notice to make available one or more 
separate certificates evidencing the Refunding Bonds to any Participant having Refunding 
Bonds certificated to its DTC account or to arrange for another securities depository to maintain 
custody of certificates evidencing the Refunding Bonds. 
 
Notwithstanding any other provision of this resolution to the contrary, so long as any bond is 
registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC, all payments with respect to the 
principal of, interest on and redemption premium, if any, on the Refunding Bonds and all 
notices with respect to the Refunding Bonds shall be made and given, respectively, to DTC as 
provided in the Blanket Issuer Letter of Representations previously entered into by the City and 
DTC, and the City Manager is authorized to enter into any additional documents with DTC on 
behalf of the City as deemed to be appropriate in order to accomplish the issuance of the 
Refunding Bonds in accordance with law and this resolution. 
 
6. BOND REGISTRAR AND PAYING AGENT.  
 
The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A. is hereby appointed as bond registrar and 
paying agent for the Refunding Bonds, and the City Manager is authorized to enter into an 
agreement with the bond registrar and paying agent. The City Manager from time to time may 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft January 25, 2010 
 

- 8 - 

designate, and may enter into an agreement with, a successor bond registrar and paying agent, 
which shall be a bank or trust company located in the State of Michigan which is qualified to act 
in such capacity under the laws of the United States of America or the State of Michigan. 
 
7. EXECUTION, AUTHENTICATION AND DELIVERY OF BONDS.  
 
The Refunding Bonds shall be executed in the name of the City by the facsimile signatures of 
the Mayor and the City Clerk and authenticated by the manual signature of an authorized 
representative of the bond registrar and paying agent, and the seal of the City (or a facsimile 
thereof) shall be impressed or imprinted on the Refunding Bonds. After the Refunding Bonds 
have been executed and authenticated for delivery to the Underwriter, they shall be delivered 
by the Treasurer to the Underwriter upon receipt of the purchase price. Additional Refunding 
Bonds bearing the facsimile signatures of the Mayor and the City Clerk and upon which the 
seal of the City (or a facsimile thereof) is impressed or imprinted may be delivered to the bond 
registrar and paying agent for authentication and delivery in connection with the exchange or 
transfer of the Refunding Bonds. The bond registrar and paying agent shall indicate on each 
Refunding Bond the date of its authentication. 
 
8. EXCHANGE AND TRANSFER OF BONDS.  
 
Any Refunding Bond, upon surrender thereof to the bond registrar and paying agent with a 
written instrument of transfer satisfactory to the bond registrar and paying agent duly executed 
by the registered owner or his duly authorized attorney, at the option of the registered owner 
thereof, may be exchanged for Refunding Bonds of any other authorized denominations of the 
same aggregate principal amount and maturity date and bearing the same rate of interest as 
the surrendered Refunding Bond. 
 
Each Refunding Bond shall be transferable only upon the books of the City, which shall be kept 
for that purpose by the bond registrar and paying agent, upon surrender of such Refunding 
Bond together with a written instrument of transfer satisfactory to the bond registrar and paying 
agent duly executed by the registered owner or his duly authorized attorney. 
 
Upon the exchange or transfer of any Refunding Bond, the bond registrar and paying agent on 
behalf of the City shall cancel the surrendered Refunding Bond and shall authenticate and 
deliver to the transferee a new Refunding Bond or Bonds of any authorized denomination of 
the same aggregate principal amount and maturity date and bearing the same rate of interest 
as the surrendered Refunding Bond. If, at the time the bond registrar and paying agent 
authenticates and delivers a new Refunding Bond pursuant to this section, payment of interest 
on the Refunding Bonds is in default, the bond registrar and paying agent shall endorse upon 
the new Refunding Bond the following: “Payment of interest on this bond is in default. The last 
date to which interest has been paid is __________.” 
 
The City and the bond registrar and paying agent may deem and treat the person in whose 
name any Refunding Bond shall be registered upon the books of the City as the absolute 
owner of such Refunding Bond, whether such Refunding Bond shall be overdue or not, for the 
purpose of receiving payment of the principal of and interest on such Refunding Bond and for 
all other purposes, and all payments made to any such registered owner, or upon his order, in 
accordance with the provisions of Section 3 of this resolution shall be valid and effectual to 
satisfy and discharge the liability upon such Refunding Bond to the extent of the sum or sums 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft January 25, 2010 
 

- 9 - 

so paid, and neither the City nor the bond registrar and paying agent shall be affected by any 
notice to the contrary. The City agrees to indemnify and save the bond registrar and paying 
agent harmless from and against any and all loss, cost, charge, expense, judgment or liability 
incurred by it, acting in good faith and without negligence hereunder, in so treating such 
registered owner. 
 
For every exchange or transfer of Refunding Bonds, the City or the bond registrar and paying 
agent may make a charge sufficient to reimburse it for any tax, fee or other governmental 
charge required to be paid with respect to such exchange or transfer, which sum or sums shall 
be paid by the person requesting such exchange or transfer as a condition precedent to the 
exercise of the privilege of making such exchange or transfer. 
 
The bond registrar and paying agent shall not be required to transfer or exchange Refunding 
Bonds or portions of Refunding Bonds which have been selected for redemption. 
 
9. FORM OF REFUNDING BONDS.  
 
The Refunding Bonds shall be in substantially the following form: 
 
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 
STATE OF MICHIGAN 
COUNTY OF OAKLAND 
CITY OF TROY 
GENERAL OBLIGATION UNLIMITED TAX REFUNDING BOND, SERIES 2010 
 

INTEREST RATE MATURITY DATE DATE OF ORIGINAL ISSUE CUSIP 
 
Registered Owner: 
 
Principal Amount:  
 
The City of Troy, County of Oakland, State of Michigan (the “City”), acknowledges itself 
indebted to, and for value received hereby promises to pay to, the Registered Owner identified 
above, or registered assigns, the Principal Amount set forth above on the Maturity Date 
specified above, unless redeemed prior thereto as hereinafter provided, upon presentation and 
surrender of this bond at the corporate trust office of The Bank of New York Mellon Trust 
Company, N.A., the bond registrar and paying agent, located in Detroit, Michigan, or other 
designated office, or at such successor bond registrar and paying agent as may be designated 
pursuant to the Resolution, and to pay to the Registered Owner, as shown on the registration 
books at the close of business on the 15th day of the calendar month preceding the month in 
which an interest payment is due, by check or draft drawn upon and mailed by the bond 
registrar and paying agent by first class mail postage prepaid to the Registered Owner at the 
registered address, interest on such Principal Amount from the Date of Original Issue set forth 
above, or such later date through which interest has been paid, until the City’s obligation with 
respect to the payment of such Principal Amount is discharged, at the rate per annum specified 
above. Interest is payable on the first days of _________ and _________ in each year, 
commencing on ___________ 1, 20__. Principal and interest are payable in lawful money of 
the United States of America. 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft January 25, 2010 
 

- 10 - 

This bond is one of a series of bonds aggregating the principal sum of 
_________________________________ Dollars ($__________) issued by the City under and 
pursuant to and in full conformity with the Constitution and Statutes of Michigan (especially Act 
No. 34, Public Acts of 2001, as amended) and a resolution adopted by the City Council of the 
City and an order adopted by the City Manager of the City (said resolution and order herein 
collectively referred to as the “Resolution”) for the purpose of refunding the City’s outstanding 
General Obligation Unlimited Tax Bonds, Series 2001 (Streets, Roads and Streetscape 
Improvements), General Obligation Unlimited Tax Bonds, Series 2001 (Public Safety Facilities) 
and General Obligation Unlimited Tax Bonds, Series 2001 (Community Center and 
Recreational Facilities) maturing in the years 20__ through 20__. The full faith and credit of the 
City are hereby pledged for the prompt payment of the principal of and interest on this bond. 
The City is authorized and required to levy annually ad valorem taxes, without limitation as to 
rate or amount, to pay such principal and interest as the same shall become due. 
 
This bond is transferable, as provided in the Resolution, only upon the books of the City kept 
for that purpose by the bond registrar and paying agent, upon the surrender of this bond 
together with a written instrument of transfer satisfactory to the bond registrar and paying agent 
duly executed by the registered owner or his attorney duly authorized in writing. Upon the 
exchange or transfer of this bond a new bond or bonds of any authorized denomination, in the 
same aggregate principal amount and of the same interest rate and maturity, shall be 
authenticated and delivered to the transferee in exchange therefore as provided in the 
Resolution, and upon payment of the charges, if any, therein provided. Bonds so authenticated 
and delivered shall be in the denomination of $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof not 
exceeding the aggregate principal amount for each maturity. 
 
The bond registrar and paying agent shall not be required to transfer or exchange bonds or 
portions of bonds which have been selected for redemption. 
 
Bonds maturing prior to ______________, ______, are not subject to redemption prior to 
maturity. Bonds maturing on and after __________________, __________, are subject to 
redemption prior to maturity at the option of the City, in such order as shall be determined by 
the City, on any one or more dates on and after _____________, __________. Bonds of a 
denomination greater than $5,000 may be partially redeemed in the amount of $5,000 or any 
integral multiple thereof. If less than all of the bonds maturing in any year are to be redeemed, 
the bonds or portions of bonds to be redeemed shall be selected by lot. The redemption price 
shall be the par value of the bond or portion of the bond called to be redeemed plus interest to 
the date fixed for redemption [and a premium as follows: 
 
__% of the par value if called for redemption on or after __________, ____, but prior to 
__________, ____; 
 
No premium if called for redemption on or after __________]. 
 
Not less than thirty nor more than sixty days’ notice of redemption shall be given to the 
registered owners of bonds called to be redeemed by mail to each registered owner at the 
registered address. Bonds or portions of bonds called for redemption shall not bear interest on 
and after the date fixed for redemption, provided funds are on hand with the bond registrar and 
paying agent to redeem the same. 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft January 25, 2010 
 

- 11 - 

It is hereby certified, recited and declared that all acts, conditions and things required to exist, 
happen and be performed precedent to and in the issuance of the bonds of this series, existed, 
have happened and have been performed in due time, form and manner as required by law, 
and that the total indebtedness of the City, including the series of bonds of which this bond is 
one, does not exceed any constitutional, statutory or charter limitation. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City of Troy, County of Oakland, State of Michigan, by its City 
Council, has caused this bond to be executed in its name by facsimile signatures of the Mayor 
and City Clerk and its corporate seal (or a facsimile thereof) to be impressed or imprinted 
hereon. This bond shall not be valid unless the Certificate of Authentication has been manually 
executed by an authorized representative of the bond registrar and paying agent.  
 
CITY OF TROY 
 
By: _______________________________   
  Tonni L. Bartholomew, City Clerk    
 
By: _________________________________ 
 Louise E. Schilling, Mayor  
 
 (SEAL) 
 
CERTIFICATE OF AUTHENTICATION 
 
This bond is one of the bonds described in the within mentioned Resolution. 
 
The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A. 
Bond Registrar and Paying Agent 
 
By:  __________________________ 
  Authorized Representative 
 
AUTHENTICATION DATE: 
 
ASSIGNMENT 
 
For value received, the undersigned hereby sells, assigns and transfers unto 
____________________________________ (please print or type name, address and taxpayer 
identification number of transferee) the within bond and all rights there under and does hereby 
irrevocably constitute and appoint______________________________________ attorney to 
transfer the within bond on the books kept for registration thereof, with full power of substitution 
in the premises. 
 
Dated:  _______________   
 
Signature Guaranteed: _______________________________ 
 
Signature(s) must be guaranteed by an eligible guarantor institution participating in a Securities 
Transfer Association recognized signature guarantee program. 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft January 25, 2010 
 

- 12 - 

END OF BOND FORM 
 
10. SECURITY
 

.  

The full faith and credit of the City are hereby pledged to the payment of the principal of and 
interest on the Refunding Bonds. There shall be levied upon all taxable property in the City 
upon the tax roll of the year 2010 and upon the tax roll of each year thereafter while any of the 
Refunding Bonds shall be outstanding, an amount such that the estimated collections there 
from will be sufficient to pay promptly at maturity the principal and interest maturing on the 
Refunding Bonds prior to the time of the following year’s tax collections. Taxes required to be 
levied to pay principal of and interest on the Refunding Bonds shall be levied without limitation 
as to rate or amount. 
 
11. DEFEASANCE
 

.  

In the event cash or direct obligations of the United States or obligations the principal of and 
interest on which are guaranteed by the United States, or a combination thereof, the principal 
of and interest on which, without reinvestment, come due at times and in amounts sufficient to 
pay, at maturity or irrevocable call for earlier optional redemption, the principal of, premium, if 
any, and interest on the Refunding Bonds, shall have been deposited in trust, this resolution 
shall be defeased and the owners of the Refunding Bonds shall have no further rights under 
this resolution except to receive payment of the principal of, premium, if any, and interest on 
the Refunding Bonds from the cash or securities deposited in trust and the interest and gains 
thereon and to transfer and exchange bonds as provided herein. 
 
12. PRINCIPAL AND INTEREST FUND
 

.  

There shall be established for the Refunding Bonds a Principal and Interest Fund. From the 
proceeds of the sale of the Refunding Bonds there shall be set aside in the Principal and 
Interest Fund any accrued interest received from the Underwriter at the time of delivery of the 
same. The proceeds of the taxes (both current and delinquent) to be used to pay the principal 
and interest on the Refunding Bonds when due shall be deposited as collected in the Principal 
and Interest Fund and so long as the principal or interest on the Refunding Bonds remain 
unpaid, no moneys shall be withdrawn from such fund except to pay such principal and interest 
or to pay from any investment earnings on such fund the fees and expenses of the bond 
registrar and paying agent. 
 
13. PAYMENT OF ISSUANCE EXPENSES -- ESCROW FUND
 

. 

The remainder of the proceeds of the Refunding Bonds shall be used, together with available 
moneys of the City, if any, to pay the issuance expenses of the Refunding Bonds and to 
establish an escrow fund for the 2001 Bonds To Be Refunded. After the issuance expenses 
have been paid or provided for the remaining proceeds and City moneys, if any, shall be used 
to establish an escrow fund (the “Escrow Fund”) consisting of cash and investments in direct 
obligations of, or obligations the principal of and interest on which are unconditionally 
guaranteed by, the United States of America or other obligations the principal of and interest on 
which are fully secured by the foregoing and used to pay the principal of, interest on and 
redemption premiums on the 2001 Bonds To Be Refunded. The Escrow Fund shall be held by 
The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A., hereby appointed as escrow agent (the 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft January 25, 2010 
 

- 13 - 

“Escrow Agent”), in trust pursuant to an escrow agreement (the “Escrow Agreement”) which 
irrevocably shall direct the Escrow Agent to take all necessary steps to pay the principal of and 
interest on the 2001 Bonds To Be Refunded when due prior to redemption and to call the 2001 
Bonds To Be Refunded for redemption at such time as shall be determined in the Escrow 
Agreement. The City Manager shall approve the Escrow Agreement at the time of sale of the 
Refunding Bonds and shall be authorized to execute and deliver the Escrow Agreement for and 
on behalf of the City. The amounts held in the Escrow Fund shall be such that the cash and the 
investments and the income received thereon will be sufficient without reinvestment to pay the 
principal of, interest on and redemption premiums on the 2001 Bonds To Be Refunded when 
due at maturity or call for redemption as required by the Escrow Agreement. 
 
14. APPROVAL OF DEPARTMENT OF TREASURY
 

.  

The issuance and sale of the Refunding Bonds shall be subject to permission being granted 
therefore by the Department of Treasury of the State of Michigan as provided in Act 34. If 
necessary, the City Manager is authorized to file an application with the Department of 
Treasury for approval of the Refunding Bonds. 
 
15. SALE, ISSUANCE, DELIVERY, TRANSFER AND EXCHANGE OF REFUNDING 

BONDS
 

. 

The Refunding Bonds shall be sold pursuant to a negotiated sale to the Underwriter as 
hereinafter provided, and it is hereby determined that such negotiated sale is in the best 
interests of the City and is calculated to provide the maximum flexibility in pricing the Refunding 
Bonds. The City Manager is authorized to enter into a Bond Purchase Agreement with the 
Underwriter, which Bond Purchase Agreement shall set forth the 2001 Bonds To Be Refunded 
and the principal amount, principal maturities and dates, interest rates and interest payment 
dates, redemption provisions, if any, purchase price to be paid by the Underwriter with respect 
to the Refunding Bonds and such other terms and provisions as the City Manager determines 
to be necessary or appropriate in connection with the sale of the Refunding Bonds. The Bond 
Purchase Agreement and the terms of the Refunding Bonds set forth therein shall be approved 
by an order adopted by the City Manager at the time of the sale of the Refunding Bonds. The 
Mayor, the Clerk, the City Manager and the Treasurer are each hereby authorized to do all 
things necessary to effectuate the sale, issuance, delivery, transfer and exchange of the 
Refunding Bonds in accordance with the provisions of this resolution. In making the 
determination in the order authorizing the sale of the Refunding Bonds and in the Bond 
Purchase Agreement with respect to principal maturities and dates, interest rates, purchase 
price of the Refunding Bonds and compensation to be paid to the Underwriter, the City 
Manager shall be limited as follows: 
 
a) The interest rate on any Refunding Bond shall not exceed 6% per annum. 
b) The final maturity date of the Refunding Bonds shall not be later than October 1, 2020. 
c) The present value of the savings (net of issuance costs) to be realized by the issuance of 

the Refunding Bonds shall be equal to or greater than 3% of the principal amount of the 
2001 Bonds To Be Refunded. 

d) The purchase price of the Refunding Bonds shall not be less than 98% of the principal 
amount thereof. 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft January 25, 2010 
 

- 14 - 

e) The Underwriter’s discount with respect to the Refunding Bonds or the compensation to 
be paid to the Underwriter shall not exceed 1% of the principal amount of the Refunding 
Bonds. 

 
16. REPLACEMENT OF BONDS
 

.  

Upon receipt by the City Clerk of proof of ownership of an unmatured Refunding Bond, of 
satisfactory evidence that the bond has been lost, apparently destroyed or wrongfully taken and 
of security or indemnity which complies with applicable law and is satisfactory to the City Clerk, 
the City Clerk may authorize the bond registrar and paying agent to deliver a new executed 
Refunding Bond to replace the Refunding Bond lost, apparently destroyed or wrongfully taken 
in compliance with applicable law. In the event an outstanding matured Refunding Bond is lost, 
apparently destroyed or wrongfully taken, the City Clerk may authorize the bond registrar and 
paying agent to pay the Refunding Bond without presentation upon the receipt of the same 
documentation required for the delivery of a replacement Refunding Bond. The bond registrar 
and paying agent, for each new Refunding Bond delivered or paid without presentation as 
provided above, shall require the payment of expenses, including counsel fees, which may be 
incurred by the bond registrar and paying agent and the City in the premises. Any Refunding 
Bond delivered pursuant to the provisions of this Section 16 in lieu of any Refunding Bond lost, 
apparently destroyed or wrongfully taken shall be of the same form and tenor and be secured 
in the same manner as the Refunding Bond in substitution for which such Refunding Bond was 
delivered. 
 
17. TAX COVENANT
 

.  

The City covenants to comply with all applicable requirements of the Internal Revenue Code of 
1986, as amended (the “Code”), necessary to assure that the interest on the Refunding Bonds 
will be and will remain excludable from gross income for federal income tax purposes. The 
Mayor, the Clerk, the City Manager, the Treasurer and other appropriate City officials are 
authorized to do all things necessary (including the making of such covenants of the City as 
shall be appropriate) to assure that the interest on the Refunding Bonds will be and will remain 
excludable from gross income for federal income tax purposes. 
 
18. QUALIFIED TAX EXEMPT OBLIGATIONS
 

. 

The Refunding Bonds are hereby designated as “qualified tax exempt obligations” as described 
in Section 265(b)(3)(B) of the Code. 
 
19. OFFICIAL STATEMENT
 

.  

The City Manager is authorized to cause the preparation of an official statement for the 
Refunding Bonds for the purpose of enabling compliance with Rule 15c2-12 issued under the 
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Rule”) and to do all other things necessary 
to enable compliance with the Rule. After the award of the Refunding Bonds, the City will 
provide copies of a “final official statement” (as defined in paragraph (e)(3) of the Rule) on a 
timely basis and in reasonable quantity as requested by the Underwriter to enable the 
Underwriter to comply with paragraph (b)(4) of the Rule and the rules of the Municipal 
Securities Rulemaking Board. 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft January 25, 2010 
 

- 15 - 

20. CONTINUING DISCLOSURE
 

.  

The Mayor and the City Clerk are hereby authorized to execute a certificate of the City to 
comply with the continuing disclosure undertaking of the City with respect to the Refunding 
Bonds pursuant to paragraph (b)(5) of the Rule, and amendments to such certificate from time 
to time in accordance with the terms of such certificate (the certificate and any amendments 
thereto are collectively referred to herein as the “Continuing Disclosure Certificate”). The City 
hereby covenants and agrees that it will comply with and carry out all of the provisions of the 
Continuing Disclosure Certificate. 
 
21. PROFESSIONAL SERVICES.
 

  

The following are appointed to act in the following capacities with respect to the Refunding 
Bonds: 
 
As financial consultant:  Bendzinski & Co., Municipal Finance Advisors 
     Detroit, Michigan 
 
As underwriter:   Fifth Third Securities, Inc. 
     Cincinnati, Ohio 
As bond counsel:   Dickinson Wright PLLC 
     Bloomfield Hills, Michigan 
 
22. CONFLICTING RESOLUTIONS.

 

 All resolutions and parts of resolutions insofar as they 
may be in conflict herewith are hereby rescinded. 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES this resolution 
AUTHORIZING the issuance of not to exceed $12,850,000 general obligation unlimited tax 
refunding bonds, Series 2010. 
 
Yes:  Slater, Schilling, Fleming, Howrylak, Kerwin, McGinnis  
No:  None 
Absent: Beltramini  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
H-4 Preliminary Site Condominium Approval (Extension) – Oak Forest Site 

Condominium, South Side of Square Lake Road, between Willow Grove and John 
R Road, Section 11 – R-1C 

 
Resolution #2010-01-023 
Moved by Kerwin  
Seconded by Fleming  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Preliminary Site Condominium 
Plan (Extension), as submitted under Section 34.30.00 of the Zoning Ordinance (Unplatted 
One Family Residential Development) for the development known as Oak Forest Site 
Condominium, located on the south side of Square Lake Road, between Willow Grove and 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft January 25, 2010 
 

- 16 - 

John R. Road in Section 11, including 76 units on 39.23 acres within the R-1C zoning district, 
with the following conditions:  
 

A. All areas noted as mitigation areas on the attached plan shall be included as 
MDEQ regulated conservation easements, and shall be reflected on the final 
site condominium plan; and  

B. A public meeting will be held with Engineering and surrounding residents to 
review the final engineering plans before final site condominium plan is 
submitted to City Council; and  

C. MDEQ approval will be obtained with all necessary assessment and permit 
documents prior to the final site condominium plan submitted to City Council; 
and  

D. The Oakland County Water Resources Commissioner shall approve the site 
condominium plan prior to the final site condominium plan submittal to City 
Council.  

 
Yes:  Schilling, Fleming, Howrylak, Kerwin, McGinnis, Slater  
No:  None 
Absent: Beltramini  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
H-5 Preliminary Site Condominium Approval (Extension) – Oak Forest South Site 

Condominium, East Side of Willow Grove, South of Square Lake Road, Section 11 
– R-1C 

 
Resolution #2010-01-024 
Moved by Kerwin  
Seconded by Fleming  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Preliminary Site Condominium 
Plan (Extension), as submitted under Section 34.30.00 of the Zoning Ordinance (Unplatted 
One Family Residential Development) for the development known as Oak Forest South Site 
Condominium, located on the east side of Willow Grove, south of Square Lake Road, in 
Section 11, including 25 units on 10.03 acres within the R-1C zoning district, with the following 
conditions:  
 

A. A public meeting will be held with Engineering and surrounding residents to 
review the final engineering plans before final site condominium plan is submitted 
to City Council; and  

B. MDEQ approval will be obtained with all necessary assessment and permit 
documents prior to the final site condominium plan is submitted to City Council; 
and  

C. The Oakland County Water Resources Commissioner shall approve the site 
condominium plan prior to the final site condominium plan submittal to City 
Council. 

 
 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft January 25, 2010 
 

- 17 - 

Yes:  Fleming, Howrylak, Kerwin, McGinnis, Slater, Schilling  
No:  None 
Absent: Beltramini  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
H-6 Preliminary Site Condominium Approval (Extension) – Adams Road Site 

Condominium, East Side of Adams, South of South Boulevard, Section 6 – R-1A 
 
Resolution #2010-01-025 
Moved by Kerwin  
Seconded by McGinnis  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Preliminary Site Condominium 
Plan (Extension), as submitted under Section 34.30.00 of the Zoning Ordinance (Unplatted 
One-Family Residential Development) for the development of a One-Family Residential Site 
Condominium, One-Family Cluster Option, known as Adams Road Site Condominium, located 
on the east side of Adams, south of South Boulevard, in Section 6, including 5 home sites, 
within the R-1A zoning district, being 4.98 acres in size. 
 
Yes  Howrylak, Kerwin, McGinnis, Slater, Schilling, Fleming  
No:  None 
Absent: Beltramini  
 
MOTION CARRIED 

I. CONSENT AGENDA: 
  
I-1a Approval of “I” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Resolution #2010-01-026 
Moved by Kerwin  
Seconded by Slater  
 
RESOLVED, That all items as presented on the Consent Agenda are hereby APPROVED as 
presented with the exception of Item(s) I-3, which SHALL BE CONSIDERED after Consent 
Agenda (I) items, as printed. 
 
Yes:  Kerwin, McGinnis, Slater, Schilling, Fleming, Howrylak  
No:  None 
Absent: Beltramini  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
I-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 
 
Resolution #2010-01-  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft January 25, 2010 
 

- 18 - 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Minutes of the 7:30 PM Regular 
City Council Meeting of January 4, 2010 as submitted. 
 
I-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions:  
 
a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2: Bid Award – Lowest Acceptable Bidders – 

Custodial Supplies    
 
Resolution #2010-01-026-I-4a 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS contracts to provide one (1) year 
requirements of custodial supplies for the City of Troy with an option to renew for one (1) 
additional year to the lowest bidders meeting specifications as follows: 
  

BIDDERS 
 

ITEMS 
 

SupplyDen of Rochester Hills 1 
Kellermeyer Company of Bowling Green Ohio 2, 9 
HP Products Corporation of Belleville 3, 6, 7 
Hercules & Hercules Inc of Detroit 4, 5 
Nichols of Muskegon 8 

 
at unit prices contained in the bid tabulation opened November 23, 2009, a copy of which shall  
be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting, with contracts expiring November 30,  
2010; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the awards are CONTINGENT upon contractors’ 
submission of properly executed bid and contract documents including insurance certificates 
and all other specified requirements. 
 
b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Snow Removal 
 Services – Fire Stations and Training Center    
 
Resolution #2010-01-026-I-4b 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a contract to provide seasonal 
requirements of snow removal services for the City’s Fire Stations and Police/Fire Training 
Center with an option to renew for two (2) additional seasons to the low bidder, Advanced 
Landscape & Builders Supply Co of Clawson, at unit prices contained in the bid tabulation 
opened December 21, 2009, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of 
this meeting, with a contract expiration of April 15, 2010; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon contractor submission of 
properly executed bid and contract documents, including insurance certificates and all other 
specified requirements. 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft January 25, 2010 
 

- 19 - 

c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Exercise Renewal Option – MITN Cooperative 
Gasoline and Diesel Fuel    

 
Resolution #2010-01-026-I-4c 
 
WHEREAS, On January 28, 2008, two (2) year contracts with an option to renew for two (2) 
additional years to provide gasoline and diesel fuel were awarded to the low bidders meeting 
specifications, Mansfield Oil Company of Gainesville, GA and RKA Petroleum Companies of 
Romulus, MI (Resolution #2008-01-023-F-4c); and  
 
WHEREAS, Both awarded bidders have agreed to exercise the two-year option to renew and 
the City of Sterling Heights has approved the contracts under the same pricing structure, terms, 
and conditions for participating members of the MITN (Michigan Intergovernmental Trade 
Network) Cooperative; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby EXERCISES the option to 
renew the contracts with Mansfield Oil Company and RKA Petroleum Companies to provide 
gasoline and diesel fuel under the same pricing structure, terms and conditions for two years 
expiring January 31, 2012. 
 
I-5 Approval of Relocation Claim – John R Road Improvement Project, Square Lake to 

South Boulevard – Project No. 02.204.5 – Parcel 43 – Sidwell #88-20-02-279-002 – 
Munchiando  

  
Resolution #2010-01-026-I-5 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES, as required by Michigan Laws and 
Federal Regulations, the relocation claim from James W. Munchiando and Elizabeth S. 
Munchiando pertaining to the City of Troy’s acquisition of their property at 6675 John R, having 
Sidwell #88-20-02-279-002, and hereby AUTHORIZES payment in the amount of $6,938.40. 
 
I-6 William and Elaine Middlekauff v. City of Troy  
 
Resolution #2010-01-026-I-6 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES and DIRECTS the City Attorney to 
represent the City of Troy in any and all claims and damages in the matter of William 
Middlekauff and Elaine Middlekauff v. City of Troy (52-4th District Court Case No. 2010-
C00011-GC; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the City Attorney 
to pay necessary costs and expenses and to retain any necessary expert witnesses to 
adequately represent the City.  
 
I-7 Renewal of Membership in the Traffic Improvement Association (TIA) of Oakland 

County  
  
Resolution #2010-01-026-I-7 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft January 25, 2010 
 

- 20 - 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby GRANTS approval to pay the renewal of the City of 
Troy’s membership in the Traffic Improvement Association for the year 2010, in the amount of 
$24,400.00, and the fee is to be divided equally between the Traffic Engineering and Police 
departments, and funds are available in the 2009-2010 Traffic Engineering budget, account 
number 443 7958 and the 2009-2010 Police budget, account number 318 7802 070. 
 
I-1b  Address of “I” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council  
 
I-3 City of Troy Proclamations:  
 
Resolution #2010-01-027 
Moved by Kerwin  
Seconded by Fleming  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the following City of Troy 
Proclamation: 
 
a) School Board Recognition Month Recognizing Troy, Birmingham, Bloomfield Hills, 

Avondale, Lamphere, Royal Oak and Warren Consolidated School Districts – January 
2010  

 
Yes:  McGinnis, Slater, Schilling, Fleming, Howrylak, Kerwin  
No:  None 
Absent: Beltramini 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

J. MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 
J-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: None Submitted 
 
J-2 Memorandums (Items submitted to City Council that may require consideration at 

some future point in time): None Submitted 
 
K. COUNCIL REFERRALS:  

Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City Council Members for 
Placement on the Agenda 

K-1   No Council Referrals Advanced 

L. COUNCIL COMMENTS 
L-1  Council Comments  
 
Mayor Schilling expressed appreciation for the efforts by City Staff mentioned in the Letters of 
Appreciation submitted to this Agenda. 
 
Council Member Kerwin expressed appreciation for the efforts by City Staff mentioned in the 
Letters of Appreciation. 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft January 25, 2010 
 

- 21 - 

Council Member Kerwin thanked Cindy Stewart for the events she has coordinated throughout 
the City over the past few weeks. 
 
Council Member McGinnis thanked Captain Mott and City Staff for the efforts involved in the 
agreement brought as Item M-2g Police Department – 1st Quarterly Review of Performance 
and Compliance of Towing Contract – A & M Towing 
 
Council Member McGinnis encouraged anyone interested to attend the discussion meeting in 
Birmingham regarding the Transit Center. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Fleming commented that the owners of A & M Towing have done a great job 
and he appreciates their attendance at this meeting. 
 
Council Member Howrylak commented that he liked the way the response to Public Comment 
worked at this meeting. He would like response to Public Comment to work in a similar way in 
the future. 
 
Council Member Howrylak commented that M-8 Communication from City Attorney’s Office 
Regarding Papadelis v. City of Troy (Telly’s Nursery) deadline is tomorrow. Mayor Schilling 
asked the City Attorney to add this topic to the Closed Session tonight. 

M. REPORTS  
M-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees: 
a) Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Final – October 1, 2009 
b) Retiree Health Care Benefits Plan and Trust/Final – October 14, 2009  
c) Building Code Board of Appeals/Final – December 2, 2009 
d) Planning Commission/Draft – December 8, 2009  
e) Planning Commission/Final – December 8, 2009  
f) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Final – December 9, 2009  
g) Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – December 15, 2009  
h) Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – December 15, 2009  
i) Election Commission/Final – December 17, 2009  
j) Building Code Board of Appeals/Draft – January 6, 2010 
k) Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Draft – January 7, 2010  
l) Liquor Advisory Committee/Draft – January 11, 2010 
m) Election Commission/Draft – January 14, 2010 

Noted and Filed 

M-2 Department Reports: 
a) Building Department – Permits Issued December 2009  
b) Building Department – Permits Issued July 2009 through December 2009 
c) Building Department – Permits Issued January 2009 through December 2009   
d) Police Department – Liquor License Compliance Checks  
e) City Manager’s Office – December 31, 2009 Quarterly Financial Report  
f) City Attorney’s Office – 2009 Fourth Quarter Litigation Report  



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft January 25, 2010 
 

- 22 - 

g)  Police Department – 1st Quarterly Review of Performance and Compliance of Towing 
Contract – A & M Towing   

Noted and Filed 
 
M-3  Letters of Appreciation: 
a) Letter of Thanks to Chief Mayer from Phil and Myra Jones Regarding the Courtesy and 

Thoughtfulness of Officers Linton and Stansbury  
b) Letter of Thanks to Chief Mayer from Troy Sports Center President Dennis Bostick 

Regarding the Hard Work and Dedication of Officers Morgan and Malik 
c) Letter of Thanks to Rick Shepler from George Renaud Regarding Professionalism and 

Assistance of Andy Willetts and Troy Water Department  
d) Letter of Thanks to Troy Fire Department from the Sakalian Family  
e) Letter of Appreciation from Dominick Tringali Architects Regarding the Professionalism 

of Building, Planning and Fire Departments  
f) Letter of Thanks to Community Center Counselors Kelly Molinar, Lauren Johnson and 

Preston Alman from Winter Break Aqua Camp Attendees 
Noted and Filed 

 
M-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:  
a) Village of Beverly Hills Resolution in Support of House Bill 5325  
b) Royal Oak City Commission Resolution in Support of House Bill 5325 
 
M-5  Communication from Acting Planning Director Brent Savidant Regarding 

Troy/Birmingham Transit Center Project Update 
Noted and Filed 

 
M-6  Communication from City Attorney Lori Grigg Bluhm Regarding The Michigan 

Medical Marihuana Act: A Municipal Lawyer’s Perspective Article Authored by 
Assistant City Attorney Christopher Forsyth 

Noted and Filed 
 

M-7  Communication from City Attorney’s Office Regarding Molnar v. City of Troy et. al. 
Noted and Filed 

 
M-8  Communication from City Attorney’s Office Regarding Papadelis v. City of Troy 

(Telly’s Nursery) 
Noted and Filed 

N. STUDY ITEMS 
N-1  City Manager John Szerlag Requests an Update on Organizational Restructuring 

from Consultant Richard Carlisle of Carlisle-Wortman Associates 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft January 25, 2010 
 

- 23 - 

O. CLOSED SESSION: 
O-1 Closed Session  
 
Resolution #2010-01-028 
Moved by Slater  
Seconded by McGinnis  
 
BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council SHALL MEET in Closed Session, as permitted by 
MCL 15.268(c) Strategy for Labor Negotiations and MCL15.268 (e) Pending Litigation – Troy v 
MNAD Property LLC; Troy v Rochester Road Associates; Troy v Picano Land Limited 
Partnership (Vacant Land); Troy v Picano Land Limited Partnership; Troy v Atto Construction 
Company; Papadelis v. City of Troy (Telly’s Nursery) and Troy v Diajeff, LLC.  
 
Yes:  Slater, Schilling, Fleming, Howrylak, Kerwin, McGinnis  
No:  None 
Absent: Beltramini  
 
The Meeting RECESSED at 10:35 PM. 
 
The Meeting RECONVENED at 10:45 PM. 
 
Update on Organizational Restructuring from Consultant Richard Carlisle of Carlisle-
Wortman Associates 
 
Richard Carlisle of Carlisle-Wortman Associates provided a brief update regarding the City of 
Troy’s organizational restructuring followed by round table discussion with City Council and 
staff. 
 
The Meeting RECESSED at 11:38 PM. 
 
The Meeting RECONVENED at 11:39 PM. 
 
Closed Session  
 
The Meeting ADJOURNED on Tuesday, January 26, 2010 at 12:25 AM.  
 
 
 
 
 
 

Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 
 
 
 
Barbara A. Pallotta, CMC 
Deputy City Clerk 

 



 

PROCLAMATION IN RECOGNITION OF 
NASA MONTH IN TROY 

FEBRUARY 2010 
 
WHEREAS, The Troy Community is privileged to be part of an out-of-this-world educational 
opportunity with astronauts aboard the Orbiting Space Station Expedition; and 
 
WHEREAS, The International Space Station (ISS) is an orbiting research facility supported by 
19 nations that conducts experiments in the area of biology, human biology, physics, astronomy 
and meteorology; and 
 
WHEREAS, Troy is the only Michigan community - and one of only six in the nation - to be 
selected for this honor by the National Aeronautics and Space Administration (NASA); and 
 
WHEREAS, The Troy School District will host a downlink that will allow the Space Station crew 
to speak live to our Troy students; and 
 
WHEREAS, This unique opportunity will give students important insight into the importance of 
NASA; and  
 
WHEREAS, This once in a lifetime opportunity creates a unique learning experience for our 
students to engage in activities that will create excitement for science and space travel; and 
 
WHEREAS, The downlink is scheduled for 10 a.m. on February 1 at Athens High School;  
 
NOW THEREFORE LET IT BE RESOLVED, That the City of Troy celebrates this important 
event by officially declaring February, 2010 to be "NASA Month" in the City of Troy; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council congratulates the Troy School District 
for being chosen with the prestigious honor of hosting the downlink with members of the Orbiting 
Space Station, Expedition 22.  
 
Presented this 1st day of February 2010. 
 
 
 

campbellld
Text Box
I-03a



 
 
January 22, 2010                          
 
 
TO:    John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM:  William Nelson, Fire Chief 
   David Roberts, Fire Marshal 
 
SUBJECT:  Mon Jin Lau Annual Fireworks Use Request  
 
 
Background:  
 

• Mon Jin Lau has requested permission to use firecrackers at its annual Lion Dance to celebrate 
Chinese New Year on February 23rd and February 24th, 2010. 

• There appear to be no changes from last year’s event.  
• City Council has approved this request in the past. 

 
Financial Considerations:  
 

Mon Jin Lau has been instructed to submit a fireworks permit application to the fire prevention division 
along with the $125.00 fee as required by ordinance. 

 
Legal Considerations:  
 

• Troy City Code Chapter 93, Fire Prevention, Section 105.6.15.1, requires an operational permit for 
the public display of fireworks. 

• Troy City Code Chapter 93, Fire Prevention, Section 3301.1.3, prohibits the use of fireworks unless 
in compliance with the Michigan Fireworks Law. 

• Michigan’s Fireworks Law requires that any person or group that would like to conduct a fireworks 
display must apply to the local unit of government for a permit. The law defines local unit of 
government as the council or commission of a city or village, or the township board of a township.  

• The use of firecrackers at this public event is considered to be a public display. 
 

Policy Considerations: 
  

The permitting process is consistent with City Council’s goal of enhancing the safety of the 
community. 

 
Options:  
 

Approve or deny the request.   

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
I-05





 

 
 
January 26, 2010 
 
 
TO:     John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM:   Gary Mayer, Chief of Police 
    Captain Gerard Scherlinck, Services Division 
    Lieutenant Michael Lyczkowski 
    Sergeant Russel Harden 
    Officer James Feld  
 
 
SUBJECT: Application for a New Club License for the Saint Andrew’s Society. 
 
Background: 
 
 The Saint Andrew’s Society of Detroit requests a New Club License to be located at 2360 

Rochester, Troy, MI 48084, Oakland County {MLCC Request #520848}. 
 On January 11, 2010, John Thomson, a member of the Board of Trustees of The Saint Andrew’s 

Society of Detroit, answered questions for the Liquor Advisory Committee. 
 Mr. Thomson explained that The Saint Andrew’s Society of Detroit is a 501.3c organization, is the 

oldest ethnic organization in the State of Michigan, and is also the oldest continuously charitable 
organization in the State of Michigan. 

 Mr. Thomson explained that are the members are of Scottish descent, with membership just 
under 500 with 70 to 80% of them being active. 

 Mr. Thomson explained that The Saint Andrew’s Society of Detroit sold their previous location on 
Congress in Detroit approximately 20 years ago and moved their offices to Southfield.  They have 
been renting the Commonwealth Club in Warren to hold their meetings.  The Society recently 
purchased the building which was formally the Mountain Jack’s Restaurant located at 2360 
Rochester.  Their plans are to move their offices into the building and to also have their 
membership meetings there.  They are in the process of $300,000 worth of improvements to the 
building to accomplish this. 

 Mr. Thomson explained that the building will be available for use and rental by its members but 
not the general public.  The Club License will permit the Society to sell beer, wine, and spirits to 
its members and their guests. 

 Mr. Thomson explained The Saint Andrew’s Society of Detroit requests approval for this New 
Club License from the Troy City Council prior to completing renovations to the building.  The 
Society understands and agrees to the stipulation that the license will not be released until 
approval of the Building and Fire Departments through Final Inspections. 

 The Committee unanimously approved this request. 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
I-06



 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 The request complies with all applicable Troy City Ordinances and Michigan Liquor Control 

Commission Rules. 
 The Police Department did not find any disqualifying factors for this request. 
 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 
 This action supports Council’s Outcomes Statement III: “Troy is rebuilding for a healthy economy 

reflecting the values of a unique community in a changing and interconnected world.” 
 
JF/The Saint Andrew’s Society. 
  











LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT             JANUARY 11, 2010  

 Page 2 of 5 

Yes:  6 
No:  0 
Absent: Ehlert 
 
 
 
Agenda Items 
 
1. The Saint Andrew’s Society of Detroit requests a New Club License to 

be located at 2360 Rochester (former site of the Mountain Jack’s 
Restaurant @ the northwest corner of Rochester and Stephenson Highway, 
next to the Red Roof Inn), Troy, MI 48083, Oakland County {MLCC Req. 
#520848}. The Saint Andrew’s Society of Detroit would like approval of the 
New Club License pending final inspections.  Once approved, they will 
begin reconstruction of the existing building to suit their needs.  License will 
not be issued until the building passing the final inspections. 

 
Present to answer questions from the Committee was John Thomson, a member 
of the Board of Trustees of the Saint Andrew’s Society of Detroit. 
 
Mr. Thomson explained to the Committee that the Saint Andrew’s Society is a 
501.3c organization, is the oldest ethnic organization in the state of Michigan, and 
is the oldest continuously operating charitable organization in the state of 
Michigan.  All members are of Scottish decent.  Their membership totals just under 
500, with approximately 70%-80% of those members being active.   
 
The Society sold their building on Congress in Detroit approximately 20 years ago.  
Since that time, they have rented office space in Southfield and have held their 
meetings at the Commonwealth Club in Warren.  The Society recently purchased 
the building at 2360 Rochester Road and $300,000 in renovations is underway, 
with March completion expected.  The establishment will be available for use and 
rental by its members, but not to the general public.  The club license will permit 
the Society to serve or sell beer, wine, and spirits to its members and their guests.   
 
Resolution #LC2010-01-003 
Moved by Ukrainec 
Seconded by Godlewski 
 
RESOLVED, That the Liquor Advisory Committee recommends that the request of 
the Saint Andrew’s Society of Detroit for a new Club License to be located at 2360 
Rochester Road, Troy, MI 48083 be APPROVED, pending all final inspections. 
 
Yes:  6 
No:  0 
Absent: Ehlert 
 

campbellld
Highlight

campbellld
Highlight



 

 
 
January 26, 2010 
 
 
TO:     John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM:   Gary Mayer, Chief of Police 
    Captain Gerard Scherlinck, Services Division 
    Lieutenant Michael Lyczkowski 
    Sergeant Russel Harden 
    Officer James Feld  
 
 
SUBJECT: Application for Transfer Ownership of Escrowed Class C Liquor License. 
 
Background: 
 
 Simbad, Inc. requests to transfer ownership of 2006 Class C Licensed Business, located in 

Escrow at 29855 Northwestern, Southfield, MI 48034, Oakland County, from F&S Food Service, 
Inc.; David H. Fink, Receiver; transfer location (Governmental Unit) (MLC 436.1531(1) to 336 
John R, Troy, MI 48083, Oakland County; and requests a new SDM License and new Dance-
Entertainment Permit to be held in conjunction {MLCC Request #528006}. 

 On December 14, 2009, Sabah Garmo and Raad Shango, Owners and applicants and Attorney 
John Hindo, answered questions for the Liquor Advisory Committee. 

 Mr. Garmo, Mr. Shango, and Mr. Hindo explained to the Committee that the purpose of this 
request is to allow Mr. Garmo and Mr. Shango to operate a restaurant at 336 John R, within the 
City of Troy.  Simbad, Inc. will also host, small, private parties.  The capacity of the establishment 
will be 230 people. 

 Mr. Garmo, Mr. Shango, and Mr. Hindo request approval for this license from the Troy City 
Council prior to doing minor interior renovations, predominantly of a cosmetic nature.  They 
understand and agree to the stipulation that the license will not be released until approval of the 
Building and Fire Departments through Final Inspections. 

 The Committee unanimously approved this request. 
 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 The request complies with all applicable Troy City Ordinances and Michigan Liquor Control 

Commission Rules. 
 The Police Department did not find any disqualifying factors for this request. 
 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
I-07



Policy Considerations: 
 
 This action supports Council’s Outcomes Statement III: “Troy is rebuilding for a healthy economy 

reflecting the values of a unique community in a changing and interconnected world.” 
 
JF/Simbad, Inc. 
  





















LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT             DECEMBER 14, 2009  

 Page 3 of 5 

 
Mr. Kher advised the Committee that he and his wife have purchased this 
business.  The previous owner has agreed to remain on site for training purposes 
as long as necessary.  All employees will be TIPS/TAMS trained.  The final 
electrical inspection has been requested but not yet conducted. 
 
Officer Feld stated that all Building Department inspections have passed with the 
exception of the electrical inspection.   
 
Resolution #LC2009-12-026 
Moved by Hall 
Seconded by Godlewski 
 
RESOLVED, That the Liquor Advisory Committee recommends that the request of 
Kher Enterprises, Inc. to transfer ownership of 2009 SDD & SDM license from 
Troy Cheese and Wine Market, Inc. located at 2558-2560 East Maple Road, Troy, 
MI 48083 be APPROVED contingent on the successful completion of employee 
training and approval of the Building Department electrical inspection. 
 
Yes:  6 
No:  0 
Absent: Kaltsounis 
 
 
 
 
3. Simbad Inc. requests transfer ownership of 2006 Class C Licensed 

Business, located in Escrow at 29855 Northwestern, Southfield, MI 48034, 
Oakland County, From F & S Food Service, Inc.: David H. Fink, Receiver to 
Simbad, Inc.: Transfer Location (Governmental Unit) MCL 436.1531(1) to 
336 John R, Troy, MI 48083, Oakland County; and request a new Dance-
Entertainment Permit to be held in conjunction {MLCC Req. #528006}.   
Simbad seeks approval for a Class C License pending final inspections. 
(Simbad Inc. will then complete renovations including a new bar area prior 
to opening.  License will not be issued until passing final inspections of the 
business).  Simbad Inc. is leasing the space that originally was the Troy 
Manor located within the Oakland Plaza Shopping Area. 

 
Present to answer questions from the Committee were attorney John Hindo and 
business owners Sabah Garmo and Raad Shango.   
 
Mr. Hindo advised the Committee that his clients have signed a lease for this 
restaurant and plan to host small private parties.  The capacity of this 
establishment is 230 people.  Upon approval of the license transfer, the owners 
plan to do minor interior renovations, predominantly of a cosmetic nature.  All 
employees will receive TIPS/TAMS training. 

campbellld
Highlight

campbellld
Highlight



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT             DECEMBER 14, 2009  

 Page 4 of 5 

 
Officer Feld stated that the Building Department inspections will be scheduled 
upon completion of the renovations. 
 
Resolution #LC2009-12-027 
Moved by Hall 
Seconded by Ogg  
 
RESOLVED, That the Liquor Advisory Committee recommends that the request to 
transfer ownership of 2006 Class C licensed business located in escrow at 29855 
Northwestern, Southfield, MI 48034, Oakland, from F & S Food Service, Inc., 
David H. Fink, Receiver, to Simbad, Inc.; request to transfer location to 336 John 
R, Troy, MI 48083, Oakland County; and request for a new Dance-Entertainment 
Permit to be held in conjunction be APPROVED contingent on the approval of all 
Building Department inspections. 
 
Yes:  6 
No:  0 
Absent: Kaltsounis 
 
 
 
 
4. NKG Business, Inc. requests transfer ownership of escrowed 2009 SDD & 

SDM Licensed Business from Peoples State Bank, located at 3176 
Rochester, Troy, MI 48083, Oakland County {MLCC Req#527498} – 
Former site of the Buscemi’s Party Store 

 
Present to answer questions from the Committee were attorney John Hindo and 
business owner Nagi Abad.   
 
Mr. Hindo advised the Committee that his clients are re-opening the Buscemi’s 
Party Store.  They own another Buscemi’s location and have been in the party 
store business for over 12 years.  All employees will receive TIPS/TAMS training. 
 
Officer Feld stated that the Police Department has nothing to report. 
 
Resolution #LC2009-12-028 
Moved by Ukrainec 
Seconded by Hall 
 
RESOLVED, That the Liquor Advisory Committee recommends that the request of 
NKG Business, Inc. to transfer ownership of escrowed 2009 SDD & SDM Licensed 
Business from Peoples State Bank, located at 3176 Rochester, Troy, MI 48083, 
Oakland County, be APPROVED. 
 

campbellld
Highlight

campbellld
Highlight



 

 
 
January 26, 2010 
 
 
TO:     John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM:   Gary Mayer, Chief of Police 
    Captain Gerard Scherlinck, Services Division 
    Lieutenant Michael Lyczkowski 
    Sergeant Russel Harden 
    Officer James Feld  
 
 
SUBJECT: Application for Transfer Ownership of Escrowed Class C & SDM Liquor 

License. 
 
Background: 
 
 Ramchin, Inc. requests to transfer ownership of escrowed 2009 Class C and SDM Licensed 

Business with Official Permit (Food), located at 6123 Highland, Waterford, MI 48327, Waterford 
Township, Oakland County, from McQuistion’s Airport Inn, Inc; Transfer Location Governmental 
Unit issued under MCL 436.1531(1) to 2940 Rochester, Troy, MI 48083, Oakland County {MLCC 
Request #533231}. 

 On January 11, 2010, Suk Nies, Owners and applicant, Jon Robinson, Business Manager, and 
Attorney Kelly Allen, answered questions for the Liquor Advisory Committee. 

 Mr. Nies, Mr. Robinson, and Ms. Allen explained to the Committee that the purpose of this 
request is to allow Mr. Nies to continue to operate the restaurant at 2940 Rochester Road, within 
the City of Troy, but will now have the ability to serve alcohol.  The business will have a name 
change from Ram’s Horn to The Hills City Grill.  The establishment will continue to be open 24 
hours.  They will abide by all the Michigan Liquor Control Commission Rules and City of Troy 
Ordinances regarding when/how that alcohol can be served/sold. 

 Mr. Robinson owns and operates The Hills Bar and Grill in Rochester Hills which is doing quite 
well. 

 Mr. Nies explained to the Committee that he has been in the restaurant business since 1972 and 
has leased the Rochester Road location since 1980.   

 Mr. Nies requests approval for this license from the Troy City Council prior to doing interior 
renovations to the building.  The exterior will receive a fresh coat of paint when the weather 
improves.  He understands and agrees to the stipulation that the license will not be released until 
approval of the Building and Fire Departments through Final Inspections. 

 The Committee unanimously approved this request. 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
I-08



Legal Considerations: 
 
 The request complies with all applicable Troy City Ordinances and Michigan Liquor Control 

Commission Rules. 
 The Police Department did not find any disqualifying factors for this request. 
 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 
 This action supports Council’s Outcomes Statement III: “Troy is rebuilding for a healthy economy 

reflecting the values of a unique community in a changing and interconnected world.” 
 
JF/The Hills City Grill. 
  
 













LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT             JANUARY 11, 2010  

 Page 3 of 5 

2. Ramchin, Inc. requests to transfer ownership of Escrowed 2009 Class C & 
SDM Licensed Business with Official Permit (Food), located at 6123 
Highland, Waterford, MI 48327, Waterford Township, Oakland County, from 
McQuistion’s Airport Inn; Transfer location Governmental Unit issued under 
MCL 436.1531(1) to 2940 Rochester, Troy, MI 48083, Oakland County 
{MLCC Req. #533231}.  This is currently Ram’s Horn Restaurant at Big 
Beaver and Rochester Road.  Suk Nies will hire his son (Jason Nies) and 
son-in-law (Jon Robinson) to manage the restaurant which will be called 
The Hills City Grill.   Jason Nies and Jon Robinson are currently partners at 
the Hills Grille in Rochester Hills.  Mr. Suk Nies would like approval of the 
Class C and SDM License pending final inspections.  Once approved, he 
will begin reconstruction of the existing building to suit the new restaurant 
needs.  License will not be issued until the building passing final 
inspections. 

 
Present to answer questions from the Committee were attorney Kelly Allen, Suk 
Nies, and Jon Robinson.   
 
Mr. Nies has been in the restaurant business since 1972 and has leased the 
Rochester Road location since 1980.  Their location in Rochester Hills has done 
very well and has received no violations.  They will continue many of their current 
menu items and will operate as a 24-hour full-service restaurant.  The owner and 
managers are prepared to train their staff in alcohol management.  The interior 
renovations will be confined to the dining area.  The exterior renovations will be 
aesthetic in nature.  They have a common parking area with the Hooters 
restaurant.   
 
Resolution #LC2010-01-004 
Moved by Godlewski 
Seconded by Ukrainec 
 
RESOLVED, That the Liquor Advisory Committee recommends that the request of 
Ramchin, Inc. to transfer ownership of escrowed 2009 Class C and SDM licensed 
business with official permit (food) located at 6123 Highland, Waterford, MI 48327, 
Oakland County, from McQuistion’s Airport Inn to 2940 Rochester Road, Troy, MI 
48083 be APPROVED, pending all final inspections. 
 
 
Yes:  6 
No:  0 
Absent: Ehlert 
 
 
 

campbellld
Highlight

campbellld
Highlight



 

 
 
January 26, 2010 
 
 
TO:     John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM:   John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager-Finance/Administration 
    Nino Licari, City Assessor 
 
SUBJECT:   Agenda Item – 2010 Poverty Exemption Guidelines 
 
 
 
Background: 
 
 MCL 211.7u states: “The real property of persons who in the opinion of the Supervisor (read 

Assessor for Cities) and Board of Review by reason of poverty are unable to contribute toward the 
public charges is exempt from taxation under this act.” 

 
In order to grant a Poverty Exemption, the Michigan Tax Tribunal (MTT) has ordered that each 
community develop a set of guidelines to determine whether the applicant qualifies for a one (1) 
year exemption from property taxes. (The exemption may be re-applied for each year) 
 
The State Tax Commission (STC) has ruled that the Income Guidelines that are used as a portion 
of the guidelines may not be less than the Federal Poverty Guidelines established each year. 
 
As the guidelines include an Assessed Value limit, a Total Asset limit, and possible changes to the 
Income Guidelines, Council is presented with updated guidelines each year for approval. 
 
You may recall that in 2001, and prior to the STC order to use the Federal Poverty Guidelines, 
management had increased the income guidelines previously established by the City Assessor.  
The STC order to use the Federal guidelines, starting in 2002, placed our guidelines 
approximately $5,000 higher than the Federal guidelines, in each category. 
 
In 2002, Management then recommended, and Council approved, leaving our guidelines the 
same, until the Federal guidelines ‘catch up’.  We are still averaging more than $800 higher in 
each category.  City Council has not changed the Income Guidelines to this point. 
 
The Assessed Value limit has changed each year by the average level of change of the 
Residential Class for that year.  This year the Residential Assessed Value limit will be the same as 
the Taxable Value, $103,000. 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
I-09



2010 POVERTY EXEMPTION GUDIELINES MEMO PAGE 2 
 

The total asset limit, which includes the home (but not an automobile), will be $271,000. 
 
Financial Considerations: 
 
 There were 33 exemptions applied for in 2009 at the March Board of Review.  Of these, thirteen 

(13) were granted exemptions totaling $959,030 in Taxable Value (T/V).  This amounts to 
$8,899.80 in exempted City taxes (in 2008, 24 exemptions accounted for $1,340,230 in T/V and 
$12,437.33 in City taxes).  

 
Since 2002, residents have been allowed to apply for Poverty Exemptions at the July and 
December Boards of Review.  Generally a couple would come in July, and none in December. 
 
This year, there were six (6) exemptions granted at the July Board (421,520 T/V), and four (4) at 
the December Board (265,160 T/V).  These ten (10) additional exemptions accounted for 
exempted Taxable Value of $686,680, and exempted City taxes of $6,372.39. 
  
The total loss of City taxes for Poverty Exemptions in 2009 was $18,809.72.   

  
Legal Considerations: 
 
 The guidelines are required by the MTT and STC.  The attached guidelines meet the requirements 

of these rulings. 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 
 The guidelines are a State mandated requirement.  They do not conform to current Council goals. 
 
Options: 
 
 Council must adopt Poverty Guidelines.  Council may adopt the guidelines as presented, or 

modify them 
 
 
NL/nl G:\Poverty Exemptions\2010\PovertyMemo2010.doc 



 
POVERTY EXEMPTION GUIDELINES 

INCOME STANDARDS 2010 
 
 
The following are the Poverty thresholds as of 12-31-09 for use in setting poverty  
exemption guidelines for 2010 assessments: 
 
 
Number of Persons Poverty  
Residing in Homestead Threshold 
 
1 person                                                                  13,959 
2 persons     16,531 
3 persons 18,470 
4 persons    22,761 
5 persons    26,419 
6 persons    29,636 
7 persons    33,347 
8 persons    37,000  
9 persons (or more) add 3,750 for each additional person     

 



 
CITY OF TROY 

POVERTY EXEMPTION GUIDELINES – 2010  
 

MCL 211.7u The real property of persons who in the judgment of the 
Supervisor and Board of Review by reason of poverty are unable to 
contribute toward the public charges is exempt from taxation under this 
Act. 

 
   The City of Troy’s standard for approving an exemption under the statute is 
based on an individual determination of hardship. 
 
   This is an exemption from taxes.  If you claim poverty under the statute, you 
must file your claim with a Poverty Exemption Affidavit.  This exemption is good 
for one year. 
 
STANDARD #1 Applicants must file a Poverty Exemption Affidavit in order to    

be considered for any exemption.  Documentation such as, 
Income Tax Forms, W-2 Forms, Deeds or Land Contracts 
and personal identification is mandatory, and must be 
attached to the Affidavit. 

 
STANDARD #2 A Poverty Exemption will not be granted if the household 

income is greater than the Income Standards Guideline. 
 

STANDARD #3 A Poverty Exemption will not be granted if the Assessed 
Value of the home exceeds $103,000. 

 
STANDARD #4 Applicants total assets cannot exceed $271,000.  This 

includes the value of your home. 
 
 
 
*The Board of Review may require a home audit and inspection, done by the 
Assessing Department, as part of the exemption process. 
 
* The income of every person residing at the home must be reported. 
 
 



 
POVERTY EXEMPTION AFFIDAVIT (for 2009 A/V Year) 

 
_________________________  ___________________ 
(Address)                        (Sidwell #) 

 
1. Household Income:  List all prior year income from: 

a)Wages/Tips                                 ________________ 
b) Social Security                            ________________ 
c) Soc. Sec. for resident minors       ________________ 
d) Pensions                                      ________________ 
e) Interest/Dividends                       ________________ 
f) Unemployment Compensation   ________________ 
g) Sub-Pay                                      ________________ 
h) Workman's Compensation         ________________ 
i) Aid to Dependent Children          ________________ 
j) Medical Disability Benefits         ________________ 
k) Lottery/Contest/Raffle               ________________ 
l) Annuities                                    ________________ 
m) Governmental Assistance          ________________ 
n) Insurance/Lawsuit Payouts        ________________ 
o) Alimony/Child Support              ________________ 
p) Rental Income                            ________________ 

 
2. Supplemental Assistance:   List monthly amount of: 

a) Food Stamps                              ________________ 
b) Surplus Food                              ________________ 
c) Transportation                            ________________ 

 
3. Residence Information: 

Is your home paid for?         Yes____    No____ 
  If No: 
  What is your mortgage/land contract balance? ___________ 
  What is your monthly payment?                        ___________ 
  Who holds your mortgage/land contract?          ___________ 
  Do you own any other property?             Yes______  No____ 
  If Yes: Attach a copy of your last tax bill. 

 
4. Employment information: 

Are you or your spouse currently employed? 
Self:  Yes____  No____    Spouse:  Yes____   No____ 
Are your or your spouse unable to work (disability, etc.) ? 
Self:  Yes____  No____    Spouse:  Yes____   No____ 
If Yes: Is this condition permanent? 
Self:  Yes____  No____    Spouse:  Yes____   No____ 
Provide medical documentation of the disability. 



 
 
5. Children/Relatives/Boarders: 

How many children, relatives, or non-related boarders share 
your home?                                              _____________________ 
Do any of the above, or anyone outside of your home, contribute 
Financially to your living expenses?           Yes ___   No___ 
If Yes:  How much:   per month __________  year_____________ 
 

6. Transportation: 
Do you own any automobiles?                           Yes____    No____ 
If Yes:  Please provide the following information: 

 
Year & Make  Price to you    Balance          Monthly payment 
____________        __________    ___________   _____________ 
____________        __________    ___________   _____________ 

 
 
7. Additional Assets: 

Please provide information about any additional assets listed. 
Checking Account:       Yes___   No___  Current Balance________ 
Savings Account:       Yes___   No___  Current Balance________ 
I.R.A.         Yes___   No___  Current Balance________ 
Keogh         Yes___   No___  Current Balance________ 
Deferred Comp        Yes___   No___  Current Balance________ 
Annuities        Yes___   No___  Current Balance________ 
Stocks/Bonds/Funds      Yes___   No___  Current Balance________ 
Money Market       Yes___   No___  Current Balance________ 
Treasury Bills       Yes___   No___  Current Balance________ 
Savings Bonds       Yes___   No___  Current Balance________ 

 
 
8. Attach copies of the following: 

a) Federal Income Form 
b) State Income Tax Form 
c) Property Tax Credit Form 
d) W-2 Forms 
e) Copy of Deed or Land Contract 
f) Identification: Driver's License 
g) A listing of your household living expenses for the prior year.   
(examples: heat, electric, insurance, etc.) 

 
You must provide proof of income and other records of all residents 
of the dwelling to be considered for an exemption. 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
I (We), __________________________________________[print name(s)] 

the undersigned, do hereby affirm that the above information is, 
to the best of my (our) knowledge, true. 
______________________________    ____________________ 
(Signed)                                                      Phone Number 
______________________________    ____________________ 
(Signed)                                                      Phone Number 
 

Subscribed and sworn to me this _____ day of _________,   _______. 
My commission expires________________ 
Notary Public   ___________________________ 

 
APPROVED:     NOT APPROVED: 
Assessor:  _______________ Assessor:              ___________ 
Board Chairperson __________ Board Chairperson___________ 
Board Member_______________ Board Member      ___________ 
Board Member_______________ Board Member      ___________ 

 
Year______ Assessment________  Board of Review A/V________ 

 
For a March Board of Review Appeal, please submit by March 9 
For a July Board of Review Appeal, please submit by July 16 
For a December Board of Review Appeal, please submit by 
December 10.  

 



  
  

TO: Members of Troy City Council 
FROM: Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney   
DATE: January 27, 2010 
SUBJECT: Sandler v. City of Troy and MMRMA  

 
 
  

Alex Sandler has filed a new lawsuit against the City of Troy and the Michigan 
Municipal Risk Management Authority.  The case was initiated as a handwritten claim in 
the 52-4 Judicial District Court.  Unfortunately, the claim does not provide many details 
about the matter.  It appears that Mr. Sandler is suing the City for the alleged failure to 
maintain roads in a safe condition.  Although these roads are not expressly identified in 
the claim, we know that Mr. Sandler previously filed a claim with the Michigan Municipal 
Risk Management Authority (MMRMA) for his automobile damages sustained on either 
Crooks Road (under the jurisdiction of the Road Commission for Oakland County) or 
Wilshire Boulevard.  According to this claim, on the morning of October 5, 2009, his wife 
was driving the vehicle near the Crooks Road/ Wilshire Boulevard intersection when she 
struck a pothole and a piece of metal sticking out of the concrete. This claim was denied 
by the MMRMA after investigation, based, in part, on the fact that Crooks Road is not a 
City road.  The MMRMA has also been sued by Mr. Sandler, and therefore has hired 
their own attorney to represent their interests in this matter.  

 
Our office will represent the City’s interests in this case unless otherwise directed.   

Please let me know if you have any questions about this matter.   
 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

campbellld
Text Box
I-10



  
  

TO: Mayor and Members of Troy City Council   
FROM: Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 

Susan M. Lancaster, Assistant City Attorney  
DATE: January 28, 2010 
SUBJECT: Troy v. Atto Construction Co.(Rochester Road Improvement Project) 

 
 

  

As a part of the Rochester Road improvement project, the City needed right of way 
and a public utility easement from the property at 3846 Rochester Road, in the City of Troy 
(formerly occupied by Marshall Music Company).  The City was not able to voluntarily 
purchase this right of way and easement, and was therefore required to file a condemnation 
lawsuit for the property.  Through a Court order, the City has already been granted 
possession of the right of way and easement property.   

The only remaining issue is the amount of just compensation to be paid for the 
property.  We have negotiated a proposed consent judgment, which would finalize this case.     

We recommend approval of the proposed consent judgment.  80% of the amount will 
be paid with federal funds, and the City is responsible for paying 20%, under the Rochester 
Road Improvement Project contract.  

Please let us know if you have any questions about this matter.   

 

 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

campbellld
Text Box
I-11



STATE OF MICHIGAN 
IN THE CIRCUIT COURT FOR THE COUNTY OF OAKLAND 

 
CITY OF TROY, a Michigan      Case No. 09-098180-CC 
Municipal corporation, 
         Hon. Colleen A. O’Brien 
 Plaintiff, 
 
vs 
 
ATTO CONSTRUCTION, INC., a Michigan 
Limited Liability Company; PEOPLE’S STATE BANK; FRANKLIN 
BANK, N.A.; CONSUMERS POWER 
COMPANY, n/k/a CONSUMERS ENERGY; and 
DETROIT EDISON COMPANY, 
 
 Defendants. 
_____________________________________________/ 
CITY OF TROY – CITY ATTORNEY’S OFFICE 
Lori Grigg Bluhm (P46908) 
Susan M. Lancaster (P33168) 
500 W. Big Beaver Road 
Troy, MI  48084 
(248) 524-3320 
Attorneys for Plaintiff 
 
BERRY REYNOLDS & ROGOWSKI, PC 
Ronald E. Reynolds (P40524) 
Joseph M. Rogowski, II (P51316) 
33493 W. 14 Mile Road, Suite 100 
Farmington Hills, MI  48331 
(248) 851-3434 
Attorneys for Defendant Atto Construction, Inc. 
_____________________________________________/ 
 
 

CONSENT JUDGMENT AS TO DEFENDANT, ATTO CONSTRUCTION, INC. 
 

At a session of said Court held in the  
Courthouse in the City of Pontiac, 
Oakland County, Michigan 
 
on______________________ 
 

PRESENT:  _____________________________ 
    Hon. Colleen A. O’Brien 



This matter having come before the Court upon Stipulation of the parties hereto, being the 

City of Troy (“Plaintiff”) and Atto Construction, Inc. (“Defendant”), and  

The Court being duly advised in the premises; 

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED AND ADJUDGED AS FOLLOWS: 

1. Title to the property described in the Declaration of Taking entered by this Court on 

March 12, 2009 has vested in Plaintiff by virtue of filing the Complaint and Declaration of Taking, 

depositing with an authorized statutory escrowee the estimated just compensation and recording a 

copy of said Declaration of Taking with the Register of Deeds of Oakland County. 

2. Total and Final Just Compensation for the taking in this matter is determined to be 

$116,300.00 (One Hundred Sixteen Thousand Three Hundred Dollars).  Plaintiff is entitled to a 

credit in the amount of $77,800.00, for the initial estimated just compensation which was previously 

paid in this matter, leaving a payment due in the amount of $38,500.00 for additional just 

compensation.  In addition to Just Compensation, Plaintiff shall pay to Defendant $1,938.71 in 

statutory interest on the additional just compensation due pursuant to the Uniform Condemnation 

Procedures Act, MCL 213.51 et seq.   

3. As set forth in paragraph 2, Plaintiff shall make a payment to Defendant in the 

amount of $40,438.71 for additional just compensation and interest.  This amount shall be paid in a 

check payable to Atto Construction, Inc., and People’s State Bank. 

4. Plaintiff shall also pay to Defendant the amount of $21,757.06 for statutory 

reimbursement of attorney fees, expert fees and costs pursuant to the Uniform Condemnation 

Procedures Act, MCL 213.51 et seq. This amount shall be paid in a check payable to Atto 

Construction, Inc., and Berry Reynolds & Rogowski PC. 



5. The payments required pursuant to this Consent Judgment are made and accepted in 

compromise and settlement of any and all claims of Defendant against Plaintiff for just 

compensation for any of the property described in the Declaration of Taking or otherwise arising out 

of the taking for public purposes of the property described in the Declaration of Taking. 

6. Subject to the enforcement of the terms herein, this Consent Judgment constitutes a 

final disposition of this case. 

 
             
      Circuit Court Judge 

STIPULATED TO AND APPROVED 
AS TO FORM AND CONTENT 
 
 
/s/ Susan M. Lancaster    /s/Ronald E. Reynolds 
Susan M. Lancaster (P33168)   Ronald E. Reynolds (P40524) 
500 W. Big Beaver Road    33493 W. 14 Mile Road, Ste. 100 
Troy, MI  48084     Farmington Hills, MI  48331 
(248) 524-3320     (248) 851-3434 
lancastesm@troymi.gov    ron@brrlawyers.com 
Attorneys for Plaintiff    Attorneys for Defendants  
       Atto Construction, Inc. 

mailto:lancastesm@troymi.gov�


January 22,2010 

TO: John Szerlag, City Manager 

FROM: Mark F. Miller, Acting Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
Steven J. Vandette, City Engine~ /'" 
Larysa Figol, Sr. Right-of-Way Representativet~ti/ 

SUBJECT: Request for Acceptance of a Warranty Deed for Right-of-Way Michigan Catholic 
Credit Union, Sidwell #88-20-27-359-019 

Background: 

• 	 As part of the redevelopment of a property located on the north side of Maple Road, east of Livernois, the 
Real Estate and Development Department has received a warranty deed for seven feet of right-of-way 
from the Michigan Catholic Credit Union, owner of the property having Sidwell #88-20-27-359-019. 

Financial Considerations: 

• 	 The consideration amount on this document is $1.00. 

Legal Considerations: 

• 	 The format and content of this document is consistent with those previously granted to and accepted by 
the City. 

Policy Considerations: 

I. 	 Troy has enhanced the health and safety of the community 
II. 	 Troy adds value to properties through maintenance or upgrades of infrastructure and quality of life venues 

. III. Troy is rebuilding for a healthy economy reflecting the values of a unique community in a changing and 
interconnected world. 

G:\MEMOS TO MAYOR AND CC\Michigan Catholic Credit Union 22-01-10.doc 

campbellld
Text Box
I-12



WARRANTY DEED 

Sidwell # 88-20-27-359-019 (part of) 
Resolution # 

The Grantor(s) MICHIGAN CATHOLIC CREDIT UNION, a Stale Chartered Credit Union, whose address is 255 East 
M'aple, Troy, MI 48083 convey(s) and warrant(s) to the of corporation, Grantee, whose 
address is 500 West Big Beaver Road, Troy, Michigan premises situated in the City of 
Troy, County of Oakland and State of Michigan: 

A 7 fool wide strip of land for right-of-way purposes being Ihe south 7 feet of lois 138 through 142, 
inclusive, as platted, "Addison Heights Subdivision", as recorded in Uber 33 of plats, Page 28, 
Oakland County Records, 

For the sum of One Dollar and no/cents ($1 ,00) 

subject to easements and building and use restrictions of record and further subject to 


Dated this --'---'---'-_ day -'-~=~__' 2010. 

MICHIGAN CATHOLIC CREDIT UNION, 
a State Chartered Credit Union 

Its: Interim Cilief Executive Officer 

STATE OF MICHIGAN ) 
COUNTY OF OAf(LAND) 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this _--'-,-'-
a 

__ ~"""""'''U''"'--''4,.~~,2010, by Robert 
Grech, Interim Chief Executive Officer, of the Michigan Union, on behalf 
of the credit union. 

When recorded return to: 
City Clerk 
City ofTroy

i 500 West Big Beaver 
Tro MI48084 

Notary Public, "'-~~':':';;'-::'~~:~' 
My commission expires; -...,.--c~'C"'__::-'---:--:-:-:' 

Acting 

lax Parcel !&:£Q:2J':l!'ill:Q..1Jill@llLillLFtecorcling Fee _______~Transter Tax .,~_____._..""""',' 

*TYPE OR PRINT NAMES UNDER SIGNA TURES 

I 



t'
g 

°1Zw 
t'
~) 

I 
t'
N 
I 

o 
N 

1
o 
-' 

5D 

\20 

l-EGAL DESCRIPTION 

of-way 
purposes being the Lots 138 

142, incusive, as platted, ".Addison 
Subdivision, recorded in Liber 33 

Page 28, Oakland COU'1ty Records. 

HARTSHORN STREET 5J 1 pow 
(AS PLA 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION (I'or City Of Troy 

Section I Lots 138 through "1 1_5, also oil af 
v(Jocted olley adjacent to Lol 143, "Addison Heights Subdivision" (as recorded in 

33 of Page 28, Oakla~d also the West 75 feet of 
Ule SOLt~ feet of tile 1/2 1/4 01 27, 
except the SO:Jth 60 feet taken (er rood purposes. 

CLIENT 
NEWGROUND 

15450 South Ouler Forth Dr., Sui:e 300 
Ches\edield, MO 63017 

,JOB No: 2.009220 

DWG. Nor 1 of 1 

rAI<fN 
eOAO 

0 
s: 

LU 
-.J 
0.. « 
2 

I"'> 
0) 

! l~ 
c· 
\.0 
(~ 

1 

·11..1 
10 
iCC)

to 
,'; 

()) 

~~ 

PI::;OFESSIONAL 

ENGINFERING 

SKETCH OF ROAD CAT10N 27°T2N. rnlE 

58 
LOT 59 

z ___rr~~_-..
• BEECH WIDTH) 



RT 

January 22, 2010 

TO: 	 John Szerlag, City Manager 

FROM: 	 Mark F. Miller, Acting Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
Steven J. Vandette, City Engine~- r 

Larysa Figol, Sr. Right-of-Way Representativt(~ 

SUBJECT: 	 Request for Acceptance of Two Permanent Sidewalk Easements RPS TROY, LLC, 
Sidwell #88-20-22-356-032 & 033 

Background: 

• 	 As part of the development of a property located on the north side of Big Beaver Road, east of Livernois, 
the Real Estate and Development Department has received two permanent sidewalk easements from RPS 
Troy, LLC, owner of the vacant properties having Sidwell #88-20-22-356-032 & 033 

Financial Considerations: 

• 	 The consideration amount on these documents is $1.00. 

Legal Considerations: 

• 	 The format and content of these documents is consistent with permanent easements previously granted to 
and accepted by the City. 

Policy Considerations: 

I. 	 Troy has enhanced the health and safety of the community 
II. 	 Troy adds value to properties through maintenance or upgrades of infrastructure and quality of life venues 
III. 	Troyjs rebuilding for a healthy economy reflecting the values of a unique community in a changing and 

interconnected world. 

G:\MEMOS TO MAYOR AND CC\RPS Troy 22-01-10.doc 

campbellld
Text Box
I-13



PERMANENT EASEMENT 

Sidwell #88-20-22-356-033 

RPS TROY, LLC, a Michigan limited liability company, Grantor(s), whose address is 21000 Twelve Mile 
Road, St. Clair Shores, MI 48081 for and in consideration of the sum of: One and no/100 Dollar ($1.00) 
paid by the CITY OF nmy, a Michigan Municipal Corporation, Grantee, whose address is 500 West Big 
Beaver Road, Troy, Michigan, grants to the Grantee the right to construct, operate, maintain, repair and/or 
replace sidewalk, said easement for land situated in the City of Troy. Oakland County. Michigan described 
as: 

SEE EXHIBIT UN ATIACHED HERETO AND BY REFERENCE MADE A PART OF 

and to enter upon sufficient land adjacent to said improvement(s) for the purpose of the construction, 
operation, maintenance, repair and/or replacement thereof. 

The premises so disturbed by the exercise of any of the foregoing powers shall be reasonably restored to 
its original condition by the Grantee. 

This instrument shall be binding upon and Inure to the benefit of the parties hereto, their heirs. 
representatives, successors and assigns and the covenants contained herein shall run with the land. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned hereunto arflxed slgnature(s) this -"-"'--_ day of 
~~~.D. 2009. 

RPS Troy, LLC, a Michigan limited liability 
company 

STATE OF MICHIGAN ) 
COUNTY OF OA-/(Lf.tND ) 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this /0 Tff- day of 'JJe:!EI'1(JEl.-. ,2009, 
by William Slefani, Member and Jeffrey Williams, Member of RPS Troy, LLC, a Michigan limited liability 
company, on behalf of said company. 

/
Nancy A. Ko!! 


Notary Public, oakland County, MI 
 op~;.~.~~Acting in Qt+l4·l!1>iP COI..'I1iy 
My Commission Expires Feblltary II, 2012 

Notary Public, one<,AND County, Michigan 
My Commission Expires_4-8-/~____ 

Prepared by: Larysa Figol Return to: City Clerk 
City of Troy CityofTroy 
500 W. Big Beaver Road 500 W. Big Beaver Road 
Troy, MI 48084 Troy, MI 48084 



EXHIBIT "A" 


PROPERTY DESCRIP770N 
PAr~CEL ID. NO. 20-22-.356-0.3.3 

PART OF SECTION 22, T - 2···N, R-ll-E, CITY OF TROY, OAKLAND 
PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS: 

LOTS 14,-25 EXCEPT THE SOUTH 69 FEET OF "EYSTERS BEAVER 
IN LIBEl< 26 OF PLATS, PAGE 14, OAKLAND COUNTY RECORDS. 

SIDEWALK EASEMENT 1 

COUN TY, MICHIGAN, MORE 

GARDENS" SUBDIVISION AS RECORDED 

A PART LOT 14 OF "EYSTERS BEAVER GARDENS" SUBDIVISION AS RECORDED IN LlBER 26 OF PLATS, 
PAGE 14, OAKLAND COUNTY RECORDS, A SUBDIVISION OF PART OF SECTION 22, T-2-N, R-ll-E, CITY 
OF TROY, OAKLAND COUNTY, MICHIGAN. 

A 5 FOOT WIDE EASEMENT FOR A SIDEWALI< DESCRIBED AS: 

COMMENCING AT THE INTEI<SECTION OF THE SOUTH LINE OF HARTLAND AVENUE (50 FEET WIDE) WITH 
THE EAST LINE OF LOUIS AVENUE (50 FEET WIDE); THENCE SOI'52'OO"W, 788.00 FEET ALONG THE 
EAST LINE OF SAID LOUIS AVENUE TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING AT THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF LOT 
14 OF SAID "EYSTERS BEAVER GARDENS· SUBDIVISION; THENCE S88'28'39"E, 5.00 FEET; THENCE 
S01'52'OO'W, 30.56 FEEl; THENCE S09'12'36'£, 25.89 FEET 10 A POINT ON THE NORTH LINE OF BIG 
BEAVER ROAD; THENCE N88'28'.39'W, 5,09 FEET ALONG SAID NORTH LINE; THENCE N09'12'.36'W, 25.43 
FEET TO A POINT ON THE EAST LINE OF SAID LOUIS AVENUE; THENCE NOI'52'OO'l':, 31.01 FEET ALONG 
SAID EAST LINE TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. 

AND 

SIDEWALK EASEMENT 2 
A PART LOT 25 OF "EYSTEI<S BEAVER GARDENS" SUBDIVISION AS RECORDED IN L1BER 26 OF PLATS, 
PAGE 14, OAKLAND COUNTY RECORDS, A SUBDIVISION OF PART OF SECTION 22, T-2-N, 11-11-E, CITY 
OF moy, OAKLAND COUNTY, MICHIGAN. 

A 5 FOOT WIDE EASEMENT FOR A SIDEWALK DESCI11BED AS: 

THE EAST 5 FEET OF LOT 25 AND OF SAID "EYSTERS BEAVER GARDENS" SUBDIVISION. 

SIDEWALI( EASE,&J£.AJT
11

i
• ·z1 A PART OF SEC770N 22, 

h, .J T-2-N" R-l1-£', CITY OF TROY,~~ ! 
OAKLAND COUN TY, MICHIGAN 

~ ... 
ii 

" 
'& 

I!J;W'...... IDATE; 12J[lli09 CHllCKllDBY DATE SCALE; NiA 

Giffels-Webster Engineers, Inc. ~_\y_N_:_,-JZ_B_+____+-12_/09-1 SHEET:CAA 20F2 

~I 
.1 
J ~iD~E=~.S~J(~;N:::;____}_.___-L_-t=:::--=:::-::-:-lENGliYEERS L.cI]"'!) S{iRrEYORS Pf.A/f/I:ERS L.4IYDSC...JPE ARCJflTKC]'S·r .. ! 2117' BOSE STREET'I)ROCIIE.STBR HILLS, MI. -.1(1,:10,9 ISEC110N: 22 T~2-N., R-l1~E JOIlNo: 17580.00 

~! i (2;18 8,-;2-;3100 . 

http:17580.00


us 

HARTLAND AVENUE (50' WIDE) 

117 
H4 

20'22'3~U)'()JO 

116 PARCEL ID. Nq. 20-22-356-032 

115 

I 
I 
I 

r~ 
f~ 

1 
I~ 

I
I 
I 

J 

SCALE: 1"~50' 

--1 

100 


SlDEW.ALK EASEMENT 
A PART OF SEC770N 22, 

T-2-N.• R-11-£', CITY OF TROY, 
OAKLAND COUNTY, MICHIGAN 



PERMANENT EASEMENT 

Sidwell #88-20-22-356-032 

RPS TROY, LLC, a Michigan limited liability company, Grantor(s), whose address is 21000 Twelve Mile 
Road, St. Clair Shores, MI 48081 for and in consideration of the sum of: One and no/100 Dollar ($1.00) 
paid by the CITY OF TROY, a Michigan Municipal Corporation, Grantee, whose address is 500 West Big 
Beaver Road, Troy, Michigan, grants to the Grantee the righrto construct, operate, maintain, repair and/or 
replace sidewalk, said easement for land situated in the City of Troy, Oakland County, Michigan described 
as: 

SEE EXHIBIT "A" ATIACHED HERETO AND E?Y REFERENCE MADE A PARr OF 

and to enter upon sufficient land adjacent to said improvement(s) for the purpose of the construction, 
operation, maintenance, repair and/or replacement thereof. 

The premises so disturbed by the exercise of any of the foregoing powers shall be reasonably restored to 
its original condition by the Grantee. 

This instrument shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties hereto, their heirs, 
representatives, successors and assigns and the covenants contained herein shall run with the land. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned hereunto affixed ~ signature(s) this J.p lH__ day of 
DEI!.EH$t2-7CA.D.2009. 

RPS Troy, LLC, a Michigan limited liability 
company 

STATE OF MICHIGAN ) 
COUNTYOF Ot:lWbAf.'1J2.....) 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this (pTtf day of ";P f;j!Efvt8G.L-- ,2009, 
by William Stefani, Member and Jeffrey Williams, Member of RPS Troy, LLC, a Michigan limited liability 
company, on behalf of said company. 

Nancy A. Koss 

NOlilry Public, Oakland County, MI 

Acting in OAt'::-LllND County 
 ~A1~NVai~/

My Commission Expires February 8, 2012 . ! 
Notary Public, 6f1iC-LfI·NJ) County, Michigan 
My Commission Expires 02-e-~ 

Prepared by: 	 Larysa Figol Return to: City Clerk 
CityofTroy City of Troy 
500 W. Big Beaver Road 500 W. Big Beaver Road 
Troy, MI 48084 Troy, MI 48084 



'.• J!I;

.1J. 
HI 
(P ~ 
~l ." 

EXHIBIT "A" 

PROPERTY OESCRIP110N 
(PARCEL 10. NO. 20-22-356-032 PER TAX DESCRIPTION) 

PART OF SECTION 22, T-2-N, R-l1-E, CITY OF TROY, OAKLAND COUNTY, MICHIGAN. MORE 
PARTICULARL Y DESCRIBED AS: 

Lors 115 AND 116, ALSO ALL OF THE VACATED ALLEY ADJACENT TO SAID LOTS OF "EYSTERS BEAVER 
GARDENS" SUBDIVISION AS RECORDED IN UBER 26 OF PLATS, PAGE 14, OAKLAND COUNTY RECORDS. 

SlOEWALK EASEMENT 1 

A PART LOT 116 AND A PART OF THE VACATED ALLEY ADJACENT TO SAID LOT OF "EYSTERS BEAvm 
GARDF.:NS" SUBDIVISION AS RECORDED IN LlBER 26 OF PLATS, PAGE 14, OAKLAND COUNTy [,ECORDS, A 
SUBDIVISION OF PART OF SECTION 22, T-2-N. R.. 11-E. CITY OF TROY. OAI(LAND COUNTY, MICHIGAN. 

A 5 FOOT WIDE EASEMENT FOR A SIDEWALK DESCRIBED AS: 

THE WEST 5 FEET OF LOT 116 AND THE WEST 5 FEET OF THE VACATED ALLEY OF SAID "EYSTERS 
BEAVER GARDENS" SUBDIVISION. 

AND 

SID£WALI( EASEMENT 2 

A PAin LOT 115 AND A PART OF THE VACATED ALLEY ADJACENT TO SAID LOT OF "EYSTERS BEAVER 
GARDENS" SUBDIVISION AS RECORDED IN UBER 26 OF PLATS, PAGE 14, OAKLAND COUNTy RECORDS. A 
SUBDIVISION OF PART OF SECTION 22. T-2-N. R-1'-E. CITY OF TROY, OAKLAND COUNTY. MICHIGAN. 

A 5 FOOT WIDE EASEMENT FOR A SIDEWALK DESCRIBED AS; 

THE EAST 5 FEET OF LOT 115 AND THE EAST 5 FEET OF THE VACATED ALLEY OF SAID "EYSTERS 
SEA VER GAHDENS" SUBDIVISION. 

SIDEWALK EASEMENT 
A PART OF SEC770N 22, 

T-2-N., R-11-£., CITY OF may, 
OAKLAND COUNTY, MICHIGAN 

DATE: 121Ul/09 ICH.ECKED BY DAm SCALE: 

SHEET: 

)OONtY. 

N/A 

20F2 

17580,00 

DRAWN: JZB I CAA 

DIlSIGN: 

12/09 

SRcnON; 22 T-2-N., R-I1-E 
ti

l I 
§

~i j 



138 

CONe. ! 

I I , 1 
I i 
~.~..--~ 20"22 -J56 "022 

\ ! 

114
2022356"030 

t I 
I 

SIDEWALK EASEMENT 
A PART OF SEC710N 22, 

T-2-N., R-11-E., CITY OF TROY, 
OAKLAND COUN TY, MICHIGAN 

DATE: 12/01i09 CHECKlIDllY 

100 

101'2 

I 
I 

I 
I

I , 
I ' 

( 

) 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                  DECEMBER 15, 2009 

1 
 

The Chairman, Glenn Clark, called the meeting of the Board of Zoning Appeals to order 
at 7:30 P.M. on Tuesday, December 15, 2009 in Council Chambers of the Troy City 
Hall. 
 
PRESENT:  Michael Bartnik 
   Glenn Clark 
   Kenneth Courtney 
   Edward Kempen 
   Matthew Kovacs 
   David Lambert 
   Lon Ullmann 
 
ALSO PRESENT: Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning 
   Allan Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
   Pam Pasternak, Recording Secretary 
 
ITEM #1 – APPROVAL OF MINUTES – MEETING OF NOVEMBER 17, 2009 
 
Motion by Lambert 
Supported by Courtney 
 
MOVED, to approve the minutes of the meeting of November 17, 2009 as written. 
 
Yeas:   All – 7 
 
MOTION TO APPROVE MINUTES CARRIED 
 
ITEM #2 – APPROVAL OF ITEM #3 AND ITEM #4 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Kovacs 
 
Yeas:   All – 7 
 
RESOLVED, that Item #3 and Item #4 are hereby approved in accordance with the 
suggested resolutions printed in the Agenda Explanation. 
 
ITEM #3 – VARIANCE REQUESTED.  CONGREGATION SHIR-TIKVAH, 3900 
NORTHFIELD PARKWAY, for relief to maintain landscaping in lieu of the 4’-6” high 
masonry-screening wall required along the east side of their off-street parking area 
where it abuts residential zoned property. 
 
MOVED, to grant Congregation Shir-Tikvah, 3900 Northfield Parkway a three (3) year 
renewal of relief to maintain landscaping in lieu of the 4’-6” high masonry-screening wall 
required along the east side of their off-street parking area where it abuts residential 
zoned property. 

campbellld
Text Box
M-01a



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                  DECEMBER 15, 2009 

2 
 

ITEM #3 – con’t. 
 

• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• There are no complaints or objections on file. 
• Variance would not have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 

 
ITEM #4 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  CHURCH OF JESUS CHRIST OF LATTER DAY 
SAINTS, 2784 E. SQUARE LAKE, for relief of the 4’-6” high masonry wall required 
along the east and west sides of off-street parking. 
 
MOVED, to grant Church of Jesus Christ Latter Day Saints, 2784 E. Square Lake, a 
three (3) year renewal for relief of the 4’-6” high masonry wall required along the east 
and west sides of off-street parking. 
 

• Conditions remain the same. 
• There are no complaints or objections on file. 

 
ITEM #5 – VARIANCE REQUESTED.  WALLACE HALEY, OF HALEY LAW FIRM 
PLC, 1890 E. SQUARE LAKE (proposed address), for relief of the Zoning Ordinance 
to construct a 120’ high cellular phone antenna tower within 49’ of the west property line 
where the site abuts residentially zoned property.  Paragraph C of Section 20.25.01 
requires that the setback of the tower from abutting residentially zoned or used property 
be at least five times the height of the structure, which would mean that this tower would 
be required to be at least 600’ setback from residentially zoned property. 
 
The petitioner was not present. 
 
Motion by Lambert 
Supported by Kempen 
 
MOVED, to move this item to the end of the agenda, Item #7 to allow the petitioner the 
opportunity to be present. 
 
Yeas:  All – 7 
 
MOTION TO MOVE THIS ITEM TO ITEM #7 CARRIED 
 
ITEM #6 – APPROVAL REQUESTED.  LARY LLEWELLYN, 475 LOVELL, for 
approval under Section 43.74.01 of the Troy Zoning Ordinance to store a commercial 
vehicle outside on residential property. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting approval under Section 43.74.01 
of the Troy Zoning Ordinance to store a commercial vehicle outside on residential 
property.  The utility truck described in the application does not meet the exceptions 
found in Section 40.66.00 of Chapter 39 of the Troy City Ordinance. 
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                  DECEMBER 15, 2009 

3 
 

ITEM #6 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Llewellyn was present and stated that he parks this vehicle on the east side of his 
garage where it is screened by landscaping and shrubbery.  Mr. Llewellyn said that he 
does not believe this vehicle detracts from the property surrounding his and is not aware 
of any objections from his neighbors.  Mr. Llewellyn further stated that the reason he 
needs the vehicle at his home is because he is on call 24 hours a day 7 days a week 
and is required by Comcast to respond to an emergency call within thirty (30) minutes. 
 
Mr. Clark asked Mr. Llewellyn to describe this vehicle. 
 
Mr. Llewellyn stated that the body of the truck is the same as an F450 pickup truck and 
with the boom he believes it is approximately 9’ tall. 
 
Mr. Bartnik indicated that it would be helpful if the Board members had pictures of this 
vehicle. 
 
Mr. Clark asked if Mr. Llewellyn was called out in the middle of the night. 
 
Mr. Llewellyn said that he has been called out approximately three times.  He is on call 
24/7 for a week at a time.   
 
Mr. Kovacs asked if Comcast was aware of the restrictions of the Troy Zoning 
Ordinance. 
 
Mr. Llewellyn stated that he had contacted his supervisor and was told that it was up to 
him to appear before this Board to gain approval to keep this vehicle at home. 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked if Comcast had made any other provisions for the parking of this 
vehicle. 
 
Mr. Llewellyn said that he could park it in Sterling Heights at the Comcast facility located 
on Van Dyke. 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked where most of Mr. Llewellyn’s calls were. 
 
Mr. Llewellyn stated that the bulk of his jobs are in Macomb County, but that he could 
be called to go anywhere. 
 
Mr. Lambert addressed the requirements for approval of commercial vehicles as 
dictated by City Council and asked Mr. Llewellyn if had looked into the possibility of 
building a garage, or adding to the existing garage. 
 
Mr. Llewellyn stated that right now it was not financially feasible to add another 
accessory building and also stated that power lines run through his property which 
would make the addition of a garage difficult. 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                  DECEMBER 15, 2009 

4 
 

ITEM #6 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked who owned this truck and Mr. Llewellyn stated that Comcast owns 
the truck but it is his option to bring the truck home. 
 
Mr. Kovacs said that it doesn’t make sense because of the fact that Mr. Llewellyn does 
not own this vehicle. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the Zoning Ordinance does not dictate the ownership of the 
vehicle, but rather the owner of the property.  Mr. Kovacs said that he feels this is a very 
unusual situation. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are four (4) written approvals on file.  There are no objections on file. 
 
Motion by Bartnik 
Supported by Courtney 
 
MOVED, to deny approval requested by Lary Llewellyn 475 Lovell for approval under 
Section 43.74.01 of the Troy Zoning Ordinance to store a commercial vehicle outside on 
residential property. 
 

• Comcast is asking permission to break the Ordinance and should be the 
petitioner on the request. 

 
Mr. Bartnik stated that the reason he moved to deny this request is because he finds it 
offensive that Comcast requires the petitioner to bring this vehicle home rather than 
leave it at his work place. 
 
Mr. Courtney stated that he believes that Comcast provides this vehicle to its 
employees so that they do not have to buy a second car.  The bulk of the service 
coverage for the petitioner is in Macomb County. 
 
Mr. Clark stated that he believes this vehicle is very well hidden.  Mr. Clark also said 
that he has friends that have on-call jobs and he does see a problem with this vehicle. 
Mr. Clark also stated that he would like to see more pictures. 
 
Mr. Bartnik said that Comcast is one of the largest corporations in the world and they 
should not be allowed to break the law.  This is not the petitioner asking for approval it is 
Comcast. 
 
Mr. Kovacs said that he agrees with what Mr. Bartnik is saying and is struggling with the 
vehicle in this area.  Mr. Kovacs asked how far away the Comcast storage facility is. 
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                  DECEMBER 15, 2009 

5 
 

ITEM #6 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Llewellyn stated that is approximately 7 or 8 miles and is located on Van Dyke near 
15 mile.   
 
Mr. Kovacs said that most people drive at least that far to get to work and does not 
believe that is a hardship.  Mr. Kovacs also stated that he understands that Mr. 
Llewellyn is on call but thinks it is reasonable for Mr. Llewellyn to drive this distance to 
pick up his truck. 
 
Mr. Llewellyn said that they are required to respond to an emergency situation within 30 
minutes of the call and if it takes him longer to respond, that will be reflected at the time 
he receives his evaluations from Comcast.   
 
Mr. Kovacs said that he understands where Mr. Bartnik is coming from.  Comcast is the 
one asking the petitioner to break the law.  Mr. Kovacs said that he would like to see 
this request postponed for thirty (30) days in order for the petitioner to either bring in a 
representative from Comcast or to bring in something in writing from Comcast. 
 
Mr. Llewellyn said that he had spoken to his supervisor and was told that he was on his 
own regarding this appeal. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked if Comcast requires their employees to bring their vehicles home. 
 
Mr. Llewellyn said that he has the option to either bring it home or park it in the storage 
lot in Sterling Heights. 
 
Mr. Ullmann stated that there is an alternative parking spot for this vehicle and believes 
this request is unreasonable.  There are no Comcast people before this Board 
protecting their interest and believes this is Comcast’s problem, not Mr. Llewellyn’s. 
 
Mr. Lambert asked how long Mr. Llewellyn has owned this home.  Mr. Llewellyn stated 
that they have lived in Troy approximately four and one-half years.  Mr. Lambert then 
asked if this vehicle has always been in this location and Mr. Llewellyn stated that it has. 
 
Mr. Kempen stated that he believes Mr. Llewellyn has met the criteria listed as “C” and 
asked about alternative locations or adding a larger garage. 
 
Mr. Llewellyn said that he had looked at building another garage but it is much too 
expensive. 
 
Mrs. Llewellyn said that she was quite upset with this Board’s reaction to this request as 
there are a number of very large recreational vehicles as well as other commercial 
vehicles parked in the area.  Furthermore, there are a number of homes on this street 
that are not kept up. 
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                  DECEMBER 15, 2009 

6 
 

ITEM #6 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Bartnik told Mrs. Llewellyn to call the Building Department to report these violations. 
 
Vote on motion to deny this request. 
 
Yeas:   2 – Ullmann, Bartnik 
Nays:   5 – Kovacs, Lambert, Clark, Courtney, Kempen 
 
MOTION TO DENY REQUEST FAILS 
 
Motion by Bartnik 
Supported by Kempen 
 
MOVED, to grant Lary Llewellyn, 475 Lovell, approval under Section 43.74.01 of the 
Troy Zoning Ordinance to store a commercial vehicle outside on residential property for 
a period of six (6) months. 
 

• Petitioner has met the criteria listed as “B” and “C”. 
 
Mr. Bartnik went on to say that the reason he recommended six (6) months is because 
he feels it is unconscionable that Comcast would ask an employee to do this.  Mr. 
Bartnik also stated that he feels somebody should respond from Comcast. 
 
Mr. Courtney said that he would like to see this request postponed until January to allow 
Comcast to clarify its position. 
 
Mr. Motzny stated that it is at the Board’s discretion to postpone this request. 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Kovacs 
 
MOVED, to postpone the request of Lary Llewellyn, 475 Lovell for approval under 
Section 43.74.01 of the Troy Zoning Ordinance to store a commercial vehicle outside on 
residential property until the meeting of January 19, 2009. 
 

• To allow the petitioner to obtain a letter from Comcast indicating the use of this 
vehicle. 

• To allow the petitioner to bring in an estimate of the cost of constructing a 
garage. 

 
Yeas:   All – 7 
 
MOTION TO POSTPONE THIS REQUEST UNTIL THE MEETING OF JANUARY 19, 
2009 CARRIED 
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                  DECEMBER 15, 2009 

7 
 

ITEM #7 (ITEM #5) - VARIANCE REQUESTED.  WALLACE HALEY, OF HALEY LAW 
FIRM PLC, 1890 E. SQUARE LAKE (proposed address), for relief of the Zoning 
Ordinance to construct a 120’ high cellular phone antenna tower within 49’ of the west 
property line where the site abuts residentially zoned property.  Paragraph C of Section 
20.25.01 requires that the setback of the tower from abutting residentially zoned or used 
property be at least five times the height of the structure, which would mean that this 
tower would be required to be at least 600’ setback from residentially zoned property. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting a variance to construct a new 120’ 
high cellular phone antenna tower.  Paragraph C of Section 20.25.01 requires that the 
setback of the tower from abutting residentially zoned or used property be at least five 
times the height of the structure, which would mean that this tower would be required to 
be at least 600’ setback from residentially zoned property.   
 
The petitioners are proposing to place this tower 49’ from the west property line where 
the site abuts residentially zoned property.  The adjacent property is currently 
developed and used as a religious facility. 
 
This item first appeared before this Board at the meeting of November 17, 2009 and 
was postponed to allow the petitioner the opportunity to review the site for a possible 
alternate location farther east from the original proposal. 
 
Mr. Stimac further stated that the petitioner had provided revised drawings indicating an 
alternative location behind the bowling alley which would result in a 208’ setback from 
the west property line. 
 
Mr. Haley was present and stated that they had met with the owner of the bowling alley 
and got permission to move this tower.  They have moved it as far to the east as they 
could without blocking the existing driveway to the south.  Mr. Haley also provided 
photo’s indicating what this tower would like.  Mr. Haley said that there are not any 
parcels in this area that would not require a variance.  The setback is based on 
aesthetics and Mr. Haley believes this tower will fit in with the Master Plan.  The setback 
to the Church building will be over 300’ and the house on the church site will now have 
a setback of 500’.  This is an unmanned, unlit facility and consistent with the type of use 
in this area.  The tower will be the most visible at this time of year, but the “monopine” 
tower will fit in better with the trees in the area.  There is no other location to place this 
tower and Mr. Haley believes this is the parcel that is least obtrusive. 
 
Mr. Ullmann asked how this location was determined to be the best location available. 
 
Mr. Haley stated that AT & T and other carriers look at an area and determine where 
there is a “hole” that would cause dropped calls, lack of service or blocked calls.  This 
project was started approximately six or seven years ago.  
 
Mr. Ullmann stated that he lives approximately one-half mile from this area and has not 
had any problems with dropped calls or coverage.  Mr. Ullmann further stated that he  



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                  DECEMBER 15, 2009 

8 
 

ITEM #7 – con’t. 
 
travels all over Michigan and does see towers placed every square mile.  The service is 
acceptable in this area and Mr. Ullmann doesn’t understand why towers are needed one 
mile apart. 
 
Mr. Haley stated that urban areas have towers close together because there are a lot of 
users in the area.  Growth is based on the types of use and not necessarily more users.  
People no longer use cell phones only in their cars but also within their homes.  They 
may get very good coverage from one of the towers in the area.  There are a number of 
other carriers that are interested in this site.  There is a lot of traffic in this area and 
although you may be able to make a call early in the morning, that same call may fail 
later in the day. 
 
Mr. Ullmann asked how many carriers were in the Bloomfield area.  Mr. Haley 
mentioned a number of carriers and towers in and around Birmingham and Bloomfield. 
 
Mr. Lambert asked what action was taken when they decided to put in a monopine 
tower versus a regular tower. 
 
Mr. Haley stated that he had appeared before the Planning Commission and they 
stressed how important this site was and said that they were willing to work with the City 
and because of the conditions they wanted to do put the best possible tower in this 
location. 
 
Mr. Lambert asked how a 120’ tall tower would compare to the height of the trees in this 
area. 
 
Mr. Haley said that the trees in this area are quite large and range from 35’ in height to 
75’ in height. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked if the height of the tower covers a larger area. 
 
Mr. Haley said that that the height provides a certain amount of coverage.  They want 
the tower higher than the trees so that there is no interference.   
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing. 
 
Mr. Stephon Bagne, an attorney speaking on behalf of Holy Trinity Romanian Orthodox 
Church stated that this Church was founded in 1970 and has 300 families that attend 
this parish.  The Pastor lives on the property and his home is within the 600’ setback 
required by the Ordinance.  The Church is very concerned about the location of this 
tower and is actually considered re-locating both the Church and the Pastor’s home 
based on health concerns.  This Church could have had this tower on their property but 
because of these concerns they decided not to.  There are a number of summer camps, 
summer school and a playground located at the back of the Church.  The Ordinance  



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                  DECEMBER 15, 2009 

9 
 

ITEM #7 – con’t. 
 
requires a 600’ setback and there is no indication that this tower is needed.  Mr. Bagne 
said that he travels all over the City and has T-Mobile as his cell phone provider and 
has never had a problem with dropped or blocked calls.  Mr. Bagne also stated that he 
does not believe it is up to this Board to try and create an even playing field among cell 
phone competitors.  Mr. Bagne’s client is very concerned as children are very 
susceptible to the effects of these towers.   The existence of this Church fits in with the 
Master Plan and the people that live in this City should not have to deal with the 
detrimental effects of this tower. 
 
Mr. Dumitru Puiu, Council President of the Church was present and spoke about the 
negative effects of people driving and either talking on cell phones or texting.  Mr. Puiu 
gave a few examples of accidents that were caused because of the use of cell phones.  
Mr. Puiu went on to explain that they have to raise $3,000.00 a month to pay the 
mortgage and other expenses involved with the Church.  Mr. Puiu said that they pray, 
socialize and have services in the evenings.  The area behind the Church has a lot of 
birds and people come and take pictures of them. 
 
Mr. Constantin Marandici, a member of the Church was present.  Mr. Marandici stated 
that he has a master’s degree in engineering and stated that the towers in Troy are very 
dangerous as they emit a low level of radiation.  Mr. Marandici had reports 
substantiating this claim.  Mr. Marandici further stated that this is a very serious problem 
and the Board should follow the 600’ setback. 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked if Mr. Marandici had a cell phone and he replied that he did.  Mr. 
Kovacs then asked why Mr. Marandici would keep this cell phone when he has so many 
concerns about the effects on his health.  Mr. Marandici said that he only uses this 
phone for emergencies. 
 
Father Calin Barbolovici, the Parish Priest was present and stated that he and his family 
are subscribers to AT & T.  Father Barbolovici said that he does not believe another 
tower is needed in this area because the coverage is so good, both inside and outside 
his home.  Father Barbolovici is against this request. 
 
No one else wished to be heard and the Public Hearing was closed. 
 
Mr. Kovacs expressed concern regarding this request, because there have not been 
any complaints regarding coverage or dropped calls in this area and believes this tower 
is not needed. 
 
Mr. Haley said that he did not have a record of dropped or blocked calls and he would 
be willing to obtain those records if the Board wanted more information. 
 
Mr. Courtney stated that he makes calls all times of the day and has never had dropped 
calls.  Mr. Courtney said that he would like to see more information supporting this  



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                  DECEMBER 15, 2009 

10 
 

ITEM #7 – con’t. 
 
request.  Mr. Courtney also asked if the Planning Commission or the petitioner decided 
that the monopine tower would be better in this location. 
 
Mr. Haley stated that they went to the Planning Commission and discussed the idea of 
what they were going to do.  They supplied pictures of different types of towers and the 
Planning Commission felt that because of the wooded nature of this site the monopine 
tower would be more aesthetically pleasing.  
 
Mr. Bartnik asked if there was an impact to the blue herons from this tower.  Mr. Haley 
said that the tower would not have an impact to the heron rookery. 
 
Mr. Bartnik asked if one of the requirements for this tower was an environmental impact 
study.  Mr. Haley stated that there is a consulting firm that does that and he is not sure if 
that has been done. 
 
Mr. Kempen asked if there was any other type of technology available to provide greater 
service rather than a 120’ tower. 
 
Mr. Haley said that there are other options but they only provide minimum coverage.  
AT & T has looked at them but feels that this is the best solution. 
 
Mr. Kempen asked about the zoning requirement regarding the setback of the tower. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that this Ordinance went to City Council in 1998 with the 
recommendation from staff and the Planning Commission that the setback be equal to 
the height of the tower.  At that meeting City Council made a motion to amend that 
recommendation and stated that the setback should be equal to 5 times the height of 
the tower. 
 
Mr. Clark said that he feels the petitioner should bring back more information. 
 
Mr. Stimac stated that it is not the job of this Board to grant variances that have the 
effect of a change to the Ordinance.  If the Board feels that the Ordinance should be 
changed then an application should be made to the Planning Commission, who will then 
review it and recommend it to City Council. 
 
Mr. Courtney stated that he believes the distance was increased because people were 
afraid that the towers would fall over. 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked what the setback was to commercial property.  Mr. Stimac said that 
the restrictions apply to property that is residentially zoned or used as residential 
property. 
 
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                  DECEMBER 15, 2009 

11 
 

ITEM #7 – con’t. 
 
Motion by Bartnik 
Supported by Ullmann 
 
MOVED, to deny the request of Wallace Haley, of Haley Law Firm, PLC, 1890 E. 
Square Lake for relief of the Zoning Ordinance to construct a 120’ high cellular phone 
antenna tower within 208’ of the west property line where the site abuts residentially 
zoned property.  Paragraph C of Section 20.25.01 requires that the setback of the tower 
from abutting residentially zoned or used property be at least five times the height of the 
structure, which would be a 600’ setback. 
 

• Petitioner has not demonstrated the need for more coverage necessitating the 
tower. 

 
Mr. Kempen said that the petitioner has indicated that there is enough coverage now 
but as the use increases there may not be enough coverage in the future. 
 
Mr. Lambert stated that in an ideal world there would be plenty of coverage without any 
towers.  Mr. Lambert said that he would like to see more concrete data before making a 
decision regarding this request and would like to see it postponed. 
 
Mr. Ullmann stated that the petitioner has failed to demonstrate a hardship.  Right now 
there is adequate coverage and does not see how the Board can grant a variance in 
case there is a problem in the future.   
 
Mr. Courtney said that he would like to see more data regarding dropped and blocked 
calls including days and times.  Mr. Courtney would like to see this item postponed. 
 
Mr. Stimac reminded Board members that at the last meeting Mr. Bartnik had made a 
motion to approve this request and that motion was postponed until tonight’s meeting. 
That is the current standing motion.  
 
The Chairman ruled the motion to deny out of order as there was a standing motion for 
approval that was postponed from the last meeting. 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Kovacs 
 
MOVED, to postpone the request of Wallace Haley, of Haley Law Firm, PLC, 1890 E. 
Square Lake for relief of the Zoning Ordinance to construct a 120’ high cellular phone 
antenna tower within 500’ of the west property line where the site abuts residentially 
zoned property.  Paragraph C of Section 20.25.01 requires that the setback of the tower 
from abutting residentially zoned or used property be at least five times the height of the 
structure, which would be a 600’ setback until the meeting of January 19, 2010. 
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                  DECEMBER 15, 2009 

12 
 

ITEM #7 – con’t. 
 

• To allow the petitioner to provide more data regarding dropped and blocked calls, 
including days and times. 

 
Yeas:  All – 7 
 
MOTION TO POSTPONE THIS REQUEST UNTIL THE MEETING OF JANUARY 19, 
2010 CARRIED 
 
Mr. Lambert asked if the City had a consultant that could provide any impartial review 
on the information regarding this request.   
 
Mr. Stimac said that he was not aware of such a consultant, but if any information is 
obtained it will be distributed to Board members. 
 
Mr. Clark asked if the Parish Council could also provide any additional information to the 
Board and was told that if any new information was provided it would be distributed to 
Board members. 
 
The Board of Zoning Appeals meeting adjourned at 9:17 with the Chair wishing 
everyone the happiest of holidays. 
 
 
 
              
      Glenn Clark, Chairman 
 
 
 
              
      Pam Pasternak, Recording Secretary 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT JANUARY 12, 2010 
  
 
 

1 
 

The Regular Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by Chair 
Schultz at 7:30 p.m. on January 12, 2010, in the Council Chamber of the Troy City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Donald Edmunds Mark J. Vleck 
Michael W. Hutson 
Mark Maxwell 
Philip Sanzica 
Robert Schultz 
Thomas Strat 
John J. Tagle 
Lon M. Ullmann 
 
Also Present: 
R. Brent Savidant, Acting Planning Director 
Christopher Forsyth, Assistant City Attorney 
 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Resolution # PC-2010-01-001 
Moved by: Tagle 
Seconded by: Edmunds 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the Agenda as prepared. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
Absent: Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 
3. MINUTES 

 
Mr. Ullmann asked that the December 8, 2009 Regular meeting minutes reflect the 
following revision: 
 

Page 3, third paragraph, after the sentence that reads, “Mr. Ullmann 
questioned the detention on site.” to add the sentence, “There was no 
detention shown.” 

campbellld
Text Box
M-01b



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT JANUARY 12, 2010 
  
 
 

2 
 

Resolution # PC-2010-01-002 
Moved by: Strat 
Seconded by: Ullmann 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the minutes of the December 8, 2009 Regular Meeting as 
revised.   
 
Yes: All present (8) 
Absent: Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Resolution # PC-2010-01-003 
Moved by: Edmunds 
Seconded by: Maxwell 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the minutes of the December 15, 2009 Special Meeting as 
prepared.   
 
Yes: All present (8) 
Absent: Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 
4. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items not on the Agenda 

 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 

 
STUDY ITEM 

 
5. POTENTIAL REZONING APPLICATION – 2684 Industrial Row, North side of 

Industrial Row, East of Coolidge, Section 32, Presently Zoned M-1 (Light Industrial) 
District, Proposed Zoning O-1 (Low Rise Office) District 
 
Mr. Savidant introduced the proposed rezoning application. 
 
Messrs. Dave McDonald and Scott McBride were present.  They indicated an 
interest in acquiring 2684 Industrial Row and converting the building into an office 
for their insurance and financial management business. 
 
There was general discussion about the potential rezoning application. 
 
It was the consensus of the members to give favorable consideration to the 
proposed rezoning. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT JANUARY 12, 2010 
  
 
 

3 
 

OTHER BUSINESS 
 

6. ELECTION OF OFFICERS 
 
Chair Schultz asked for nominations from the floor for Chair. 
 
Mr. Strat nominated Michael Hutson for Chair. 
 
Hearing no further nominations, Chair Schultz declared the nominations for the 
position of Chair closed.   
 
ROLL CALL VOTE 
Yes All present (8) 
Absent: Vleck 
 
Chair Schultz asked for nominations from the floor for Vice Chair. 
 
Mr. Strat nominated Mark Maxwell for Vice Chair. 
 
Hearing no further nominations, Chair Schultz declared the nominations for the 
position of Vice Chair closed. 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE 
Yes All present (8) 
Absent: Vleck 
 
Chair Schultz asked for nominations from the floor for Board of Zoning Appeals 
(BZA) Representative. 
 
Mr. Sanzica nominated Donald Edmunds. 
 
Hearing no further nominations, Chair Schultz declared the nominations for the 
position of Board of Zoning Appeals Representative closed. 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE 
Yes All present (8) 
Absent: Vleck 
 
Chair Schultz asked for nominations from the floor for Board of Zoning Appeals 
(BZA) Alternate. 
 
Mr. Edmunds nominated Philip Sanzica.  
 
Hearing no further nominations, Chair Schultz declared the nominations for the 
position of Board of Zoning Appeals Alternate closed. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT JANUARY 12, 2010 
  
 
 

4 
 

ROLL CALL VOTE 
Yes All present (8) 
Absent: Vleck 
 
 

7. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items on Current Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 

 
 
8. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENTS 

 
There was general discussion on the following: 
 
 Troy/Birmingham Transit Center. 
 Preservation of trees on residential development applications. 
 Enforcement of codes relating to land use, blight and nuisance, new 

responsibility of the Planning Department. 
 A work plan summary for the Comprehensive Zoning Ordinance Rewrite is 

forthcoming. 
 Section 28.30.09 of the Zoning Ordinance discussed in general terms by Mr. 

Savidant.  There was general agreement to consider an amendment to this 
section, eliminating the requirement that warehouse facilities can have up to 
25% retail only if located on a major thoroughfare. 

 Mr. Schultz was thanked by all for his outstanding job as Chair for the last three 
years. 

 
 

The Regular Meeting of the Planning Commission adjourned at 8:20 p.m. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
Robert M. Schultz, Chair 
 
 
 
 
       
R. Brent Savidant, Acting Planning Director 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2010 PC Minutes\Draft\01-12-10 Regular Meeting_Draft.doc 
 



 

 
 
January 25, 2010 
 
TO:    John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 

Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
 
SUBJECT: Final Reporting – BidNet On-Line Auction Services – December 2009  
 
Background 
 
 Resolution #2004-02-075 established the auction fee of 5% and provided approval to use 

BidCorp with the provision that other on-line auction service options would be considered.  
BidNet moved forward and implemented an on-line surplus auction service for the MITN 
System (Michigan Inter-governmental Trade Network), which can be accessed through 
the City of Troy home web page.  MITN is the official e-procurement website used by the 
City for posting bids, tabulations, quotations, and award information. It was a Purchasing 
goal that one e-procurement site would be operational for all functions. 

 
Financial Considerations 
 
 In compliance with Resolution #2004-02-075, final reporting is being presented for eighty 

eight (88) Dell computers, one (1) Mitrick Desktop 4 channel VHF base station, one (1) 
Motorola VHF base station, one (1) GE Mastr II base station, one (1) Panasonic VCR, one 
(1) mini light-bar, one (1) Lot of assorted lenses, two (2) NASC action lights, one (1) 
Motorola Micor VHF base station, one (1) Motorola Desktrac radio base station, two (2) 
MAR Skybolt lights, one (1) VHF Micor receiver, three (3) UHF Micor receivers, one (1) 
Code 3 strobe, two (2) Street-hawk light-bars, one (1) Whelen mini edge strobe, one (1) 
Lot of misc Motorola Micor VHF power amps, one (1) MSA Explosimeter, one (1) Homelite 
saw,  and one (1) Sony camera were auctioned on-line through BidNet, the City’s e-
procurement website, from November 20, 2009 and closed by, December 7, 2009.   

 
 Final reporting is also being presented for one (1) GMC bus that was auctioned on-line 

through BidNet, the City’s e-procurement website, from November 20, 2009 and closed 
on December 3, 2009.    

 
1 of 2 

              CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
M-02a



January 25, 2010 
 
To: John Szerlag, City Manager 
Re: Final Reporting – BidNet On-Line Auction Services – December, 2009  
         
 
Financial Considerations - continued 
 
Final sale amounts and fees are listed below:     
DESCRIPTION PROCEEDS SUB-TOTAL NET INCOME 

(88) Dell computers and emergency fire equipment    $        5,016.51               

(1) GMC bus                990.00   
 5% Buyers’ premium – for Auction Fees                 49.50   

    

                                                             SUB-TOTAL:  $6,056.01  
 FEES:   
5% (Dell computers and emergency equipment) Fee         ($ 250.89)     
5% on Vehicles (paid back thru buyer’s premium)         ($   49.50)   
                                                             SUB-TOTAL:      ($300.39)  

Sales Tax +6%,(Computers and emergency equipment): $          301.00   
Sales Tax (None on Vehicles):                   0.00   

    

                                                             SUB-TOTAL:  $     301.00  
 

   

      $ 6,056.62 
 
Legal Considerations 
 
 Farmington Hills, Michigan was the lead agency for the bid process for an on-line 

auction website.  Resolution #2004-02-075. 
 
Policy Considerations 
 
 Sale of surplus property is a statutory requirement of the Purchasing Department. 

(Chapter 7, Sec 8), no perceived Policy consideration is associated with this item.  
 

Options 
 
 To report final results of December 2009 auctions to City management. 
 
 No action required 
 
 
 
 
G:Agenda-Final Reporting-BidNet on line– December 09  

2 of 2 



 

MITN Auctions National Auctions 

  Auctions Main 
Menu   

  HELP/FAQ     Contact Support   MITN Admin 
Menu 

 
 

Report for the City of Troy, MI   

Detailed Report for Seller: ALL   

Reported on 1/22/2010 From: 12/1/2009  To: 12/31/2009 

Item 
ID 

Date 

Sale 
Amount 

Tax 
Collected Charge Type of 

Fee 

Auction Description Seller  

6372 12/2/2009 18.50 1.11 0.93 Sale  Mitrik Desktop 4 Channel VHF Base 
Stations 

Bockstanz   

6373 12/2/2009 21.50 1.29 1.08 Sale  Motorola VHF Base Station Bockstanz   
6374 12/2/2009 16.50 0.99 0.83 Sale  GE Mastr II Base Station Bockstanz   
6379 12/2/2009 2.00 0.12 0.10 Sale  Panasonic AG-1320 VCR Bockstanz   
6391 12/2/2009 31.77 1.91 1.59 Sale  Mini Lightbar Bockstanz   
6396 12/2/2009 5.25 0.32 0.26 Sale  Lot of Assorted Lenses Bockstanz   
6399 12/2/2009 10.50 0.63 0.53 Sale  NASC Action Lite 1 Bockstanz   
6371 12/2/2009 51.00 3.06 2.55 Sale  Motorola Micor VHF Base Stations Bockstanz   
6377 12/2/2009 66.50 3.99 3.33 Sale  Motorola Desktrac Base Stations Radios Bockstanz   
6397 12/2/2009 27.50 1.65 1.38 Sale  MARS Skybolt Light Bockstanz   
6376 12/2/2009 25.00 1.50 1.25 Sale  VHF Micor Receivers and 3 UHF Micor 

Receivers 
Bockstanz   

6385 12/2/2009 21.50 1.29 1.08 Sale  Code 3 Strobe Bockstanz   
6389 12/2/2009 51.00 3.06 2.55 Sale  Streethawk Lightbar Bockstanz   
6390 12/2/2009 43.00 2.58 2.15 Sale  Streethawk Lightbar 1 Bockstanz   
6392 12/2/2009 12.00 0.72 0.60 Sale  NASC Auction Lite Bockstanz   
6395 12/2/2009 66.01 3.96 3.30 Sale  Whelen Mini Edge Strobe Bockstanz   
6375 12/2/2009 7.50 0.45 0.38 Sale  One Lot of Misc Motorola Micor VHF 

Power Amp 
Bockstanz   

6384 12/2/2009 10.00 0.60 0.50 Sale  MSA Explosimeter Bockstanz   
6393 12/2/2009 127.50 7.65 6.38 Sale  Homelite Saw Bockstanz   
6398 12/2/2009 22.50 1.35 1.13 Sale  MARS Skybolt Light - Silver Base Bockstanz   
6388 12/2/2009 19.50 1.17 0.98 Sale  Sony Camera Bockstanz   
6508 12/3/2009 990.00 49.50 49.50 Sale  1973 GMC Bus Bockstanz   
5641 12/7/2009 10.00 0.60 0.50 Sale  Dell Computer B385 Bockstanz   
5640 12/7/2009 10.00 0.60 0.50 Sale  Dell Computer B384 Bockstanz   
6421 12/7/2009 60.45 3.63 3.02 Sale  Dell Computer B415 Bockstanz   
6422 12/7/2009 53.00 3.18 2.65 Sale  Dell Computer B416 Bockstanz   
6423 12/7/2009 53.00 3.18 2.65 Sale  Dell Computer B417 Bockstanz   
6424 12/7/2009 53.00 3.18 2.65 Sale  Dell Computer B418 Bockstanz   
6425 12/7/2009 54.00 3.24 2.70 Sale  Dell Computer B419 Bockstanz   
6427 12/7/2009 56.00 3.36 2.80 Sale  Dell Computer B421 Bockstanz   
6428 12/7/2009 54.00 3.24 2.70 Sale  Dell Computer B422 Bockstanz   
6429 12/7/2009 51.00 3.06 2.55 Sale  Dell Computer B423 Bockstanz   
6432 12/7/2009 53.00 3.18 2.65 Sale  Dell Computer B426 Bockstanz   
6433 12/7/2009 51.00 3.06 2.55 Sale  Dell Computer B427 Bockstanz   

https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/default.asp?pid=1�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/natauctions.asp?National=1�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/myarea.asp?pid=3�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/myarea.asp?pid=3�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/faq.asp?pid=4�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/feedback.asp?pid=5�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/logoutagency.asp�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/logoutagency.asp�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/myarea-f-detailed.asp?sellerid=ALL&beginmonth=12&beginyear=2009&endmonth=12&endyear=2009&sortby=id�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/myarea-f-detailed.asp?sellerid=ALL&beginmonth=12&beginyear=2009&endmonth=12&endyear=2009&sortby=id�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/myarea-f-detailed.asp?sellerid=ALL&beginmonth=12&beginyear=2009&endmonth=12&endyear=2009&sortby=Date�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/myarea-f-detailed.asp?sellerid=ALL&beginmonth=12&beginyear=2009&endmonth=12&endyear=2009&sortby=Type�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/myarea-f-detailed.asp?sellerid=ALL&beginmonth=12&beginyear=2009&endmonth=12&endyear=2009&sortby=Type�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/myarea-f-detailed.asp?sellerid=ALL&beginmonth=12&beginyear=2009&endmonth=12&endyear=2009&sortby=Seller�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6372�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6373�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6374�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6379�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6391�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6396�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6399�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6371�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6377�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6397�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6376�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6385�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6389�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6390�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6392�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6395�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6375�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6384�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6393�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6398�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6388�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6508�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=5641�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=5640�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6421�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6422�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6423�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6424�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6425�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6427�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6428�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6429�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6432�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6433�


6436 12/7/2009 63.00 3.78 3.15 Sale  Dell Computer B430 Bockstanz   
6437 12/7/2009 53.00 3.18 2.65 Sale  Dell Computer B431 Bockstanz   
6439 12/7/2009 51.00 3.06 2.55 Sale  Dell Computer B433 Bockstanz   
6440 12/7/2009 50.50 3.03 2.53 Sale  Dell Computer B434 Bockstanz   
6441 12/7/2009 51.00 3.06 2.55 Sale  Dell Computer B435 Bockstanz   
6442 12/7/2009 53.00 3.18 2.65 Sale  Dell Computer B436 Bockstanz   
6445 12/7/2009 53.00 3.18 2.65 Sale  Dell Computer B439 Bockstanz   
6448 12/7/2009 53.00 3.18 2.65 Sale  Dell Computer B442 Bockstanz   
6449 12/7/2009 53.00 3.18 2.65 Sale  Dell Computer B443 Bockstanz   
6451 12/7/2009 53.00 3.18 2.65 Sale  Dell Computer B445 Bockstanz   
6454 12/7/2009 53.00 3.18 2.65 Sale  Dell Computer B448 Bockstanz   
6455 12/7/2009 53.00 3.18 2.65 Sale  Dell Computer B449 Bockstanz   
6459 12/7/2009 48.00 2.88 2.40 Sale  Dell Computer B453 Bockstanz   
6460 12/7/2009 53.00 3.18 2.65 Sale  Dell Computer B454 Bockstanz   
6464 12/7/2009 46.00 2.76 2.30 Sale  Dell Computer B458 Bockstanz   
6466 12/7/2009 54.00 3.24 2.70 Sale  Dell Computer B460 Bockstanz   
5970 12/7/2009 8.00 0.48 0.40 Sale  Dell Optiplex Computer B405 Bockstanz   
5976 12/7/2009 10.00 0.60 0.50 Sale  Dell Computer B409 Bockstanz   
6430 12/7/2009 53.00 3.18 2.65 Sale  Dell Computer B424 Bockstanz   
6431 12/7/2009 53.00 3.18 2.65 Sale  Dell Computer B425 Bockstanz   
6426 12/7/2009 53.00 3.18 2.65 Sale  Dell Computer B420 Bockstanz   
6434 12/7/2009 53.00 3.18 2.65 Sale  Dell Computer B428 Bockstanz   
6435 12/7/2009 62.00 3.72 3.10 Sale  Dell Computer B429 Bockstanz   
6443 12/7/2009 54.00 3.24 2.70 Sale  Dell Computer B437 Bockstanz   
6444 12/7/2009 66.00 3.96 3.30 Sale  Dell Computer B438 Bockstanz   
6446 12/7/2009 54.00 3.24 2.70 Sale  Dell Computer B440 Bockstanz   
6447 12/7/2009 54.00 3.24 2.70 Sale  Dell Computer B441 Bockstanz   
6450 12/7/2009 54.00 3.24 2.70 Sale  Dell Computer B444 Bockstanz   
6452 12/7/2009 53.00 3.18 2.65 Sale  Dell Computer B446 Bockstanz   
6453 12/7/2009 53.00 3.18 2.65 Sale  Dell Computer B447 Bockstanz   
6456 12/7/2009 54.00 3.24 2.70 Sale  Dell Computer B450 Bockstanz   
6458 12/7/2009 53.00 3.18 2.65 Sale  Dell Computer B452 Bockstanz   
6461 12/7/2009 53.00 3.18 2.65 Sale  Dell Computer B455 Bockstanz   
6462 12/7/2009 54.00 3.24 2.70 Sale  Dell Computer B456 Bockstanz   
6463 12/7/2009 53.00 3.18 2.65 Sale  Dell Computer B457 Bockstanz   
6467 12/7/2009 53.00 3.18 2.65 Sale  Dell Computer B461 Bockstanz   
6468 12/7/2009 56.00 3.36 2.80 Sale  Dell Computer B462 Bockstanz   
6469 12/7/2009 53.00 3.18 2.65 Sale  Dell Computer B463 Bockstanz   
6471 12/7/2009 53.00 3.18 2.65 Sale  Dell Computer B465 Bockstanz   
6473 12/7/2009 54.00 3.24 2.70 Sale  Dell Computer B467 Bockstanz   
6470 12/7/2009 53.00 3.18 2.65 Sale  Dell Computer B464 Bockstanz   
6472 12/7/2009 53.00 3.18 2.65 Sale  Dell Computer B466 Bockstanz   
6492 12/7/2009 53.00 3.18 2.65 Sale  Dell Computer B468 Bockstanz   
6493 12/7/2009 56.00 3.36 2.80 Sale  Dell Computer B469 Bockstanz   
6494 12/7/2009 56.00 3.36 2.80 Sale  Dell Computer B470 Bockstanz   
6495 12/7/2009 56.00 3.36 2.80 Sale  Dell Computer B471 Bockstanz   
6499 12/7/2009 56.00 3.36 2.80 Sale  Dell Computer B475 Bockstanz   
6500 12/7/2009 56.00 3.36 2.80 Sale  Dell Computer B476 Bockstanz   
6502 12/7/2009 56.00 3.36 2.80 Sale  Dell Computer B478 Bockstanz   

https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6436�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6437�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6439�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6440�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6441�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6442�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6445�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6448�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6449�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6451�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6454�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6455�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6459�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6460�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6464�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6466�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=5970�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=5976�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6430�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6431�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6426�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6434�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6435�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6443�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6444�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6446�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6447�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6450�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6452�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6453�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6456�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6458�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6461�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6462�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6463�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6467�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6468�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6469�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6471�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6473�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6470�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6472�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6492�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6493�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6494�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6495�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6499�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6500�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6502�


6503 12/7/2009 56.00 3.36 2.80 Sale  Dell Computer B479 Bockstanz   
5965 12/7/2009 8.50 0.51 0.43 Sale  Dell Optiplex Computer B401 Bockstanz   
6504 12/7/2009 56.03 3.36 2.80 Sale  Dell Computer B480 Bockstanz   
6505 12/7/2009 56.00 3.36 2.80 Sale  Dell Computer B481 Bockstanz   
6506 12/7/2009 53.00 3.18 2.65 Sale  Dell Computer B482 Bockstanz   
6507 12/7/2009 53.00 3.18 2.65 Sale  Dell Computer B483 Bockstanz   
6509 12/7/2009 43.00 2.58 2.15 Sale  Dell Computer B484 Bockstanz   
6513 12/7/2009 53.00 3.18 2.65 Sale  Dell Computer B488 Bockstanz   
6496 12/7/2009 53.00 3.18 2.65 Sale  Dell Computer B472 Bockstanz   
6510 12/7/2009 53.00 3.18 2.65 Sale  Dell Computer B485 Bockstanz   
6511 12/7/2009 53.00 3.18 2.65 Sale  Dell Computer B486 Bockstanz   
6512 12/7/2009 54.00 3.24 2.70 Sale  Dell Computer B487 Bockstanz   
6514 12/7/2009 53.00 3.18 2.65 Sale  Dell Computer B489 Bockstanz   
6516 12/7/2009 42.00 2.52 2.10 Sale  Dell Computer B491 Bockstanz   
6497 12/7/2009 59.00 3.54 2.95 Sale  Dell Computer B473 Bockstanz   
6498 12/7/2009 53.00 3.18 2.65 Sale  Dell Computer B474 Bockstanz   
6501 12/7/2009 54.00 3.24 2.70 Sale  Dell Computer B477 Bockstanz   
6515 12/7/2009 60.00 3.60 3.00 Sale  Dell Computer B490 Bockstanz   
6517 12/7/2009 54.00 3.24 2.70 Sale  Dell Computer B492 Bockstanz   
6438 12/7/2009 53.00 3.18 2.65 Sale  Dell Computer B432 Bockstanz   
6457 12/7/2009 53.00 3.18 2.65 Sale  Dell Computer B451 Bockstanz   
6518 12/7/2009 49.00 2.94 2.45 Sale  Dell Computer B493 Bockstanz   
6519 12/7/2009 63.00 3.78 3.15 Sale  Dell Computer B494 Bockstanz   
5638 12/7/2009 11.50 0.69 0.58 Sale  Dell Computer B382 Bockstanz   
6465 12/7/2009 54.00 3.24 2.70 Sale  Dell Computer B459 Bockstanz   

  

Total Sales 
Amount 

Total Tax 
Collected 

Total Amount 
Charged 

Total 
Payments 

Total Balance Due for the selected 
date range 

Total Balance 
Due 

$6,006.51 $350.50 $300.39 . $300.39 $300.39 
 

 

https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6503�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=5965�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6504�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6505�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6506�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6507�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6509�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6513�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6496�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6510�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6511�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6512�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6514�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6516�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6497�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6498�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6501�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6515�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6517�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6438�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6457�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6518�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6519�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=5638�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6465�


 
 
 
DATE: January 27, 2010 
 
TO: John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance and Administration 
 Mark F. Miller, Acting Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
 
SUBJECT: Update of the Energy Efficiency and Conservation Block Grant (EECBG) 
 
 
The U.S. Department of Energy granted the City of Troy $921,000 as part of the EECBG 
program.  The following is a status of the program: 
 
The City prepared a strategy to spend the EECBG dollars.  This strategy includes the project 
proposals and the Rapid Energy Assessment Program (REAP) for the cost of $15,000.  These 
project proposals and strategy were submitted to U.S. Department of Energy (USDOE) in 
December 2009.  The U.S. Department of Energy has 100 days to approve this strategy.  The 
following is a summary of the projects included in the strategy. 
 
 
 
U.S. Department of Energy Approved Projects 
 

1. Project and Strategy Development including the REAP.   $15,000 
• Item total         $15,000 

 
 
U.S. Department of Energy Pending Approval Projects 
 

1.  Wind energy projects (demonstration) 
o City Campus (2 Windspire systems, Michigan made, installed est.) $24,000 
• Item total         $24,000 

 
 

This project will allow the City to analyze the performance of a Michigan-manufactured wind 
energy conversion system that has many benefits over traditional horizontal axis systems.  
These “Windspire” turbines are quieter, smaller, and less expensive to install.  They operate at 
a low wind speed, and are simple to maintain.  They will initially be used to shed small loads 
at the pilot locations.  If successful, additional systems may be contemplated in the future. 

 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
M-05



2.  LED –Lighting  
o City Hall         $117,000 
o City Campus Parking and Road Exterior Lighting   $77,792 
o Police Department        $30,860 
o Library         $41,845 
o Courthouse Exterior        $3,978 
o Fire Training Facility       $21,920 
• Item total         $293,984 

 
This project would fund LED lighting improvements throughout the City of Troy municipal 
campus.  It is estimated that the LED installations specified here will save the City $14,510.50 
annually.  The project will also significantly reduce maintenance costs.  This represents a 
significant reduction in energy usage. 

 
3. Energy audits for high-priority City buildings (est. $0.14 per sq. ft., $1,000 minimum)  

o City Hall (130,030 sq. ft.)       $18,204 
o DPW Garage (61,500 sq. ft.)      $8,610 
o Fire Station 1 (6,616 sq. ft.)      $1,000 
o Fire Station 2 (5,072 sq. ft.)      $1,000 
o Fire Station 3 (8,700 sq. ft.)      $1,218 
o Fire Station 4 (4,911 sq. ft.)      $1,000 
o Fire Station 5 (6,000 sq. ft.)      $1,000 
o Fire Station 6 (6,600 sq. ft.)      $1,146 
o Nature Center (8,184 sq. ft.)      $6,248 
o Library (44,630 sq. ft.)       $6,248 
o Police and Fire Training (21,136 sq. ft.)     $2,959 
• Item total         $42,473 

 
Energy audits of these City facilities have been determined by the REAP and City staff to be 
the most pressing.  A level 2 energy audit will look deeply into the existing systems and 
construction, as well as building usage and appliances (computer, kitchen, HVAC, etc.).  An 
audit will allow the City to identify precisely where additional energy efficiency and 
conservation funds can be spent to reduce energy costs. 

 
 

4. High Efficiency Vehicles (making up increment between conventional and alternative 
energy or hybrid vehicle additional costs, approximate cost $6,000 per vehicle)  

o Year 1 Ten vehicles        $60,000 
o Year 2 Ten vehicles        $60,000 
o Year 3 Ten vehicles        $60,000 
• Item total         $180,000 

 
EECBG funds can be used to pay for the difference between a traditional vehicle and a hybrid 
vehicle.  They cannot be used to buy a vehicle outright.  This measure is designed to upgrade 
a number of vehicles annually that the City traditionally buys anyway to hybrid models.  In 
similar circumstances reported by the City of Troy, they doubled mileage per gallon for 
inspector vehicles in a single year, realizing a large savings in fuel costs. 

 
 
 



5. City Hall Boiler Project  
o Asbestos Abatement       $30,000 
o Lochinvar natural gas boiler systems (BTU TBD)   $90,000 
o Professional assistance in design and installation   $9,900 
• Item total         $129,900 

 
EECBG funds can be used to pay for the upgrades to more energy efficient heating and 
cooling systems, and can also be used to pay for the mitigation of asbestos if it is hindering 
the development of such an energy efficiency project.  The existing boiler at City Hall was 
installed in 1965 and has exceeded its useful life.  The city intends to install two smaller, 
more efficient, LEED conscious boilers that will use significantly less energy than existing 
systems.  Lochinvar Corporation states that their Power Fin boilers are rated at 87% 
efficiency. 

 
 

6. Energy improvement for high-priority City buildings (remainder $235,743 distributed on a 
per sq. foot basis for estimation purposes.  These building-by-building distributions may be 
shifted or modified, based on audit results)  

o City Hall (130,030 sq. ft., 42.86%)      $101,040.82 
o DPW Garage (61,500 sq. ft., 20.27%)     $47,789.05 
o Fire Station 1 (6,616 sq. ft., 2.18%)     $5,141.01 
o Fire Station 2 (5,072 sq. ft., 1.67%)     $3,941.24 
o Fire Station 3 (8,700 sq. ft., 2.87%)     $6,760.4 
o Fire Station 4 (4,911 sq. ft., 1.62%)     $3,816.13 
o Fire Station 5 (6,000 sq. ft., 1.98%)     $4,662.35 
o Fire Station 6 (6,600 sq. ft., 2.18%)     $5,128.58 
o Nature Center (8,184 sq. ft., 2.70%)     $6,359.44 
o Library (44,630 sq. ft., 14.71%)      $34,680.09 
o Police and Fire Training (21,136 sq. ft., 6.97%)    $16,423.89 
• Item total         $235,743 

 
Although exact dollars cannot necessarily be identified until after the energy audits are 
completed, this item takes the remaining funds and divides them among the buildings 
identified for potential improvements.  The funds can be shifted from one building to 
another, but this estimate is based on square footage. 

 
 
Total projects cost seeking U.S. DOE approval      $906,100 
Total projects cost with U.S. DOE approval                                                           $15,000 
Total EECBG grant                  $921,000 
 
 
 
MFM/bt\AGENDA ITEMS\2010\02.01.10 – Update on the EECBG 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


	AGENDA: February 1, 2010
	COVER MEMO
	PUBLIC COMMENT
	AGENDA: Return to 1st Page
	EXPLANATION BOOKLET:  Return to 1st Page
	CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:
	C-1 Presentations:
	Proclamation in Recognition of National Aeronautics and Space Administration (NASA) Month in Troy – February 2010, Presented by Mayor Schilling to Troy School District


	CARRYOVER ITEMS:
	D-1 No Carryover Items

	PUBLIC HEARINGS:
	E-1 No Public Hearings

	PUBLIC COMMENT:
	POSTPONED ITEMS:
	G-1 No Postponed Items

	REGULAR BUSINESS:
	H-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees:
	Mayoral Appointments: None Scheduled
	City Council Appointments: Board of Zoning Appeals

	H-2 Nominations for Appointments to Boards and Committees:
	Mayoral Nominations: None Scheduled
	City Council Nominations: Building Code Board of Appeals

	H-3 Request to Reschedule 2009 Liquor Violation Hearings

	CONSENT AGENDA:
	I-1a Approval of “I” Items NOT Removed for Discussion
	I-1b  Address of “I” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council
	I-2  Approval of City Council Minutes
	I-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations:
	Recognition of National Aeronautics and Space Administration (NASA) – February, 2010

	I-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions:  None Submitted
	I-5 Mon Jin Lau Annual Fireworks Use Request
	I-6 Request from The Saint Andrew’s Society of Detroit for a New Club License to be Located at 2360 Rochester – MLCC Request #520848
	I-7 Request from Simbad, Inc. to Transfer Ownership of 2006 Class C Licensed Business to 336 John R and a New SDM License and New Dance-Entertainment Permit to be held in Conjunction – MLCC Request #528006
	I-8 Request from Ramchin, Inc. to Transfer Ownership of Escrowed 2009 Class C and SDM Licensed Business with Official Permit (Food) to 2940 Rochester – MLCC Request #533231
	I-9 2010 Poverty Exemption Guidelines
	I-10 Sandler v. City of Troy and MMRMA
	I-11 Troy v. Atto Construction Co. (Rochester Road Improvement Project)
	I-12 Request for Acceptance of a Warranty Deed for Right-of-Way – Michigan Catholic Credit Union – Sidwell #88-20-27-359-019
	I-13 Request for Acceptance of Two Permanent Sidewalk Easements – RPS Troy, LLC – Sidwell #88-20-22-356-032 and -033

	MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:
	J-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:  None Submitted
	J-2 Memorandums (Items submitted to City Council that may require consideration at some future point in time): None Submitted

	COUNCIL REFERRALS:
	K-1   No Council Referrals Advanced

	COUNCIL COMMENTS
	L-1   No Council Comments Advanced

	REPORTS
	M-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:
	Board of Zoning Appeals/Final – December 15, 2009
	Planning Commission/Draft – January 12, 2010

	M-2 Department Reports:
	Purchasing Department – Final Reporting BidNet On-Line Auction Services – December, 2009

	M-3  Letters of Appreciation: None Submitted
	M-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: None Submitted
	M-5  Communication from Acting Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services Mark Miller Regarding Update of the Energy Efficiency and Conservation Block Grant (EECBG)

	STUDY ITEMS
	N-1  No Study Items Submitted

	CLOSED SESSION:
	O-1 No Closed Session Requested

	ADJOURNMENT



